
 

Borough of Telford and Wrekin 

Planning Committee 

Wednesday 19 October 2022 

6.00 pm 

4th Floor Meeting Room, Addenbrooke House, Ironmasters Way, 

Telford TF3 4NT 

   

 

Democratic Services: 

 

Jayne Clarke / Rhys Attwell 01952 383205 / 382195 

Media Enquiries: 

 

Corporate Communications 01952 382406 

 

Committee Members: 

 

Councillors C F Smith (Chair), G L Offland (Vice-Chair), 

G H Cook, N A Dugmore, I T W Fletcher, A S Jhawar, J Jones, 

J Loveridge and P J Scott 

 Substitutes Councillors V A Fletcher, E J Greenaway, 

J E Lavery, I Preece, G C W Reynolds, K S Sahota, 

W L Tomlinson, B Wennington and D R W White 

 
 Agenda Page 

 
1.0   Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2.0   Declarations of Interest 
 

 

3.0   Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting. 
 

3 - 10 

4.0   Deferred/Withdrawn Applications 
 

 

5.0   Site Visits 
 

 

6.0   Planning Applications for Determination 
 
Please note that the order in which applications are heard may be changed at 
the meeting.  If Members have queries about any of the applications, they are 

11 - 12 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

requested to raise them with the relevant Planning Officer prior to the 
Committee meeting. 
 

6.1   TWC/20022/0210 - Site of 2 Elim Terrace, Trench Road, Trench, Telford, 
Shropshire 
 

13 - 32 

6.2   TWC/2022/0804 - Land west of, Hollinshead Way, Old Park, Telford, 
Shropshire 
 

33 - 58 

 
 

Page 2



 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Planning Committee held on Wednesday 21 

September 2022 at 6.00 pm in 4th Floor Meeting Room, Addenbrooke 
House, Ironmasters Way, Telford TF3 4NT 

 
 
Present: Councillors N A Dugmore, I T W Fletcher, A S Jhawar, J Jones, 
J Loveridge, K S Sahota (as substitute for G H Cook), P J Scott and 
C F Smith (Chair) 
 
In Attendance: R Attwell (Democracy Officer (Democracy)), J Banks 
(Planning Officer), J Clarke (Senior Democracy Officer (Democracy)), 
K Craddock (Principal Planning Officer), C Edgington (Planning Officer), 
A Gittins (Area Team Planning Manager - West), S Hardwick (Lead Lawyer: 
Litigation & Regulatory) H Rea (Legal Advisor) and V Hulme (Development 
Management Service Delivery Manager) 
 
Apologies: Councillors G H Cook and G L Offland 
 
PC304 Declarations of Interest 
 
In respect of planning application TWC/2022/0515, Councillor N Dugmore 
advised that he was a member of Muxton Parish Council but had not been 
involved in any discussions on this application. 
 
PC305 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee 
held on 31 August 2022 be confirmed and signed by the Chairman. 
 
PC306 Deferred/Withdrawn Applications 
 
None. 
 
PC307 Site Visits 
 
None. 
 
PC308 Planning Applications for Determination 
 
Members had received a schedule of planning applications to be determined 
by the Committee and fully considered each report and the supplementary 
information tabled at the meeting regarding planning application 
TWC/2022/0390.  
 
PC309 TWC/2022/0390 - Site of former New College Telford, King 

Street, Wellington, Telford, Shropshire 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

 

This was an application for the erection of 22no. dwellings, a retirement living 
complex containing 66no. units and 10no. bungalows, indoor sports facility 
and community hall with associated car parking, additional parking for local 
community organisations, alterations to 2no. existing accesses and provision 
of 2no. new vehicular accesses, associated landscaping, attenuation pond, 
public open space and infrastructure on the site of former New College 
Telford, King Street, Wellington, Telford, Shropshire.  
 
This application was presented to committee as it required financial 
contributions via section 106. 
 
An update report was tabled at the meeting. 
 
Mr S Thompson, Applicant, spoke in favour of the application which was part 
of a £27m investment in the Wellington area over the next three years.  
Viability of the application had been challenging due to construction costs and 
it was asked that there be no affordable housing secured via a 106 on this 
application.  A Homes England Grant to bring the project forward was being 
applied for and this could not be granted if affordable housing was sought via 
the S106.  The development would fulfil 78% affordable housing via the 
Homes England Grant. 
 
The Principal Planning Officer gave a brief overview of the application which 
met NDSS required space standards  Although there was slightly less outdoor 
space attached to the bungalows, space was provided for each of the 
bungalows in the form of a private outdoor space or a balcony as well as a 
communal garden.  Access was from Regent Street and King Street and there 
was an additional 21 bay car park to serve an existing community group in 
order to address local congestion and parking issues.  There was also an 
addition of a parking space for staff attending at the apartments.  An amended 
site plan has been agreed showing the additional staff parking space.  
Concerns had been raised regarding the impact of the development on setting 
of the former listed girls’ school from the proximity of the retirement 
apartments and although it had not been possible to fully address these 
concerns it was considered that the benefits outweighed the harm and on 
balance could be accepted subject to conditions.  Following a viability 
appraisal the scheme was not viable for 25% affordable housing secured via 
the S106 and therefore Members were being asked to approve the scheme 
with 0% affordable housing to allow the applicant to access Homes England 
Grant Funding to deliver 78% affordable housing on site.  Contributions via 
the S106 would be sought towards healthy spaces and education and it was 
agreed by the applicant that these would be paid in full. 
 
During the debate some Members asked for clarification on the use of the 
indoor sport facility and whether it would be used for community use and 
would this be manned by a paid member of staff.  Other Members asked for 
clarification in relation to the additional car park for community use.  Further 
clarification was sought on the Homes England Grant Funding and how this 
would be monitored.  Other Members asked if the tree to be planted at the 
rear of Durban could be a semi-mature specimen and raised concerns on the 

Page 4



 

 

length of the opening hours and the condition that the winders and doors be 
closed at all time and where the bin storage would be housed and would 
refuse vehicles have sufficient access.  Other Members felt that this 
application was good for Wellington and the local community and that this was 
the right type of application in the right place, supported by the Town Council 
with very few negatives. 
 
The Principal Planning Officer confirmed that the running of the sports facility 
did not sit with Planning but with the Council’s Estates Team. Tennis and 
netball had previously been provided on site for the community and the 
Section 106 contributions would replace these facilities as part of a wider 
strategy drawn up with Sport England. In respect of the community use car 
park, a new 21 bay car park would be created to assist with the community 
group opposite the development on King Street.  With regard to Home 
England Grant Funding, should Members agree to 0% affordable housing 
there would be no means for the Local Planning Authority to monitor or revise 
this, however by way of reassurance to Members Wrekin Housing Group had 
designed the site to provide adaptable apartments and bungalows that would 
meet affordable housing design standards. A recent application that had been 
approved with 0% affordable housing has received grant funding as intended 
and it was hoped that would give some reassurance.  The opening hours were 
standard and a noise mitigation plan and management place would be 
required and Environmental Health had suggested the closing of windows and 
doors due to not knowing who would be utilizing the space. 
 
On being put to the vote it was, unanimously:  
 
RESOLVED – that delegated authority be granted to the Development 
Management Service Delivery Manager to grant planning permission 
(with the authority to finalise any matter including Condition(s), legal 
agreement terms, or any later variations) subject to the following: 
 

a) The Applicant/Landowners entering into a Section 106 Agreement 
with the Local Planning Authority (items i) to ii) subject to 
indexation from the date of Committee), relating to: 

 
i) Financial Contribution towards Healthy Spaces of £105,000 

(£10,000 towards study  into netball provision, £10,000 
towards study into tennis provision, £10,000 towards 
delivering netball  strategy, £10,000 towards delivering 
tennis strategy and £65,000 towards the nearest free to use 
publicly accessible Multi Use Games Area at Millfields Park 
to incorporate street cricket, basketball and 5-a-side 
football in a replacement purpose built facility); 

 
ii) Financial Contribution towards Education of £136,306 

(£96,178 towards Primary Education and £40,127 towards 
Secondary Education); 

 

Page 5



 

 

iii) Car Park off King Street to remain in use for associated 
community group in perpetuity to accommodate user 
parking for events; 

 
iv) s.106 Monitoring Fee of £4,852.10 (1% of the total value of 

contributions, or capped at £15,000). 
 

b) Submission of Proposed Site Plan showing addition of 1no. staff 
parking space in association with the retirement apartments 

 
c) The conditions contained in the Report and Update Report.  

 
PC310 TWC/2022/0515 - Site of 23 Wellington Road, Muxton, 

Telford, Shropshire 
 
This application was for the felling of 1no. Monkey Puzzle tree and 3no. Pine 
trees on the site of 23 Wellington Road, Muxton, Telford, Shropshire. 
 
The application was before Members at the request of Donnington & Muxton 
Parish Council. 
 
Councillor L Dugmore spoke against the application on behalf of the Parish 
Council who raised concerns regarding the conditions from the previous three 
applications being ignored and damage had been caused to the trees which 
had caused them to be in a desperate state and dangerous.  She felt 
approving the application was a reward for the applicant’s behaviour.  Further 
concerns were also raised that enforcement hand not taken place and how 
could they be confident that action would be taken against the Developer for 
their flagrant disregard of planning consent. 
 
The Planning Officer informed Members that a Tree Preservation Order (TPO) 
had been placed on four trees in 2018 in relation to the proposed 
development and following a compliance visit it was apparent from the 
condition of the trees that the conditions of the TPO had not been adhered to 
protective fencing had not been implemented and there had been soil 
interruption to the tree roots.  The damage to the Pine trees had meant they 
had become unstable with dead wood present and the surrounding ground 
compacted.  Long term stability of the trees was of concern.  The 
Arboricultural Specialist had confirmed that the Monkey Puzzle tree had 
declined and the roots of the Pine trees had been damaged irrecoverably.  
The Council’s Tree Officer had confirmed that in the interest of safety and 
future amenity that the trees needed to be felled. 
 
It was requested that consent was approved, subject to the conditions that 
trees were replaced in line with the Tree Officer recommendations of a 20-
25cm girth and the submission of an aftercare management plan for five years 
in order for successful tree survival. 
 
The Tree Officer commented that conditions were not adhered to and ground 
works, the storage of concrete blocks and changes to soil levels had all 

Page 6



 

 

impacted the trees.  In August this year there was some stem bleeding and 
honey fungus and it was a question of when the trees would come down.  A 
power company had recently taken a chunk out of the Pine tree and it was 
suggested that these trees be removed and replaced with similar large trees. 
 
During the debate some Members raised concerns regarding the state of the 
Monkey Puzzle tree as well as the Pine trees and felt that the Tree Officer had 
a better knowledge of the state of the trees and that they should be replaced 
with like for like trees with an aftercare plan in place in order to ensure that it 
was adhered to.  Other Members felt concerned that the trees had been 
destroyed and asked what actions could be taken, whether the replacement 
trees would be semi mature and what conditions could be put in place.  It was 
also asked if there was a timescale for action to be taken. 
 
The Tree Officer confirmed that there were a number of factors involved with 
the TPO legislation and that if the TPO was not adhered to other agencies 
would follow this up and that TPOs were very important.  The investigation 
was currently with the Legal Team.  The damage to the trees was being 
monitored. 
 
The Legal Advisor commented that there were investigations currently 
ongoing into the offences committed and it was difficult to estimate a time as 
this depended on the case being brought, but that this was not for 
consideration by Members 
 
Upon being put to the vote it was, by a majority:- 
 
RESOLVED – that delegated authority be granted to the Development 
Management Service Delivery Manager to grant Tree Preservation Order 
consent subject to the following: 
 

a) The Condition(s) and Informative(s) (with authority to finalise 
Condition(s) to be delegated to Development Management Service 
Delivery Manager) contained within the report. 

 
PC311 TWC/2022/0552 - 16 Avondale Road, Wellington, Telford, 

Shropshire, TF1 2HD 
 
This application was for a change of use from residential dwelling (Use Class 
C3) to children's residential accommodation (Use Class C2) at 16 Avondale 
Road, Wellington, Telford, Shropshire TF1 2HD  
 
This application was before Planning Committee at the request of Wellington 
Town Council. 
 
Councillor M Hosken (Ward Councillor) spoke against the application and on 
behalf of local residents who had raised concerns regarding the change of use 
from use class C3 to use class C2.  This was a residential property and 
should not be used for a commercial enterprise and a family would be 
removed from their home and moved elsewhere in order to accommodate a 

Page 7



 

 

pseudo family.  He raised concerns regarding the ages of the residents, the 
sex of the residents, social and educational welfare area outside of the 
property, staff qualifications and who would monitor their performance and 
that this money making venture would affect the lives of local residents and 
devalue surrounding properties. 
 
Mrs H Barker, a member of the public, raised concerns regarding the 
consultation process and she had made further representations prior to the 
committee meeting.  She was not against the idea of the scheme but felt that 
issues had not been fully addressed in relation to the bedrooms and sleeping 
arrangements for up to four people on a 24 hour basis.  Some of the 
downstairs space was being converted into work space and this would limit 
the living space which would be unfair on the children.  The back garden was 
of a decent size but adjoined five other gardens spaces and this, together with 
the weather, would limit the use in that sense.  She felt that this application 
would be more suitable for a detached house in order to meet the needs of 
the children. 
 
The Planning Officer confirmed that this was a three bedroom, two storey 
house with parking at the front and around the side of the property.  The 
change of use to a C2 residential institution would be for a maximum of two 
children from the ages of 8-18 years with two carers on a rota basis.  There 
would be up to two children sleeping overnight with six carers on for 48 hours 
and the off for 60 hours with no more than three carers at any one time.  
There would be a changeover at 8am with a manager visiting between the 
hours of 8am to 5pm Monday to Friday.  Changes to the living room into an 
office/study was proposed and there was sufficient parking space at the 
property.  Policy HO7 regarding specialist housing needs proposed that it met 
the needs of local residents and required local community shops, services and 
transport.  Policy BE1 confirmed there was no significant adverse impact.  The 
proposed use would simulate a typical family and was close to amenities and 
services in Wellington.  A balanced view had been taken as planning could 
not differentiate between children, there was a strict match making process for 
vulnerable children and a short of supply of housing with children often being 
move to another authority losing their local family connection.  The application 
could not be considered on suitability but on its own individual merits.  In 
relation to parking and highway impact, there were no objections in relation to 
trip generation. There was no detrimental impact in relation to overlooking and 
noise on neighbouring properties and due to adequate garden space and on-
site parking the application was compliant with the Local Plan. 
 
During the debate some Members raised that this was an opportunity for two 
children to be looked after and brought up in a proper manner and that the 
property could be sold and difficult children could move in and it was felt that it 
was a family replacing a family and there was no reasons to object.  Other 
Members felt that the property was not physically suitable in relation to small 
domestic living conditions and the conversion of a living room into an office 
space and it was asked where the second carer would sleep.  It was asked if 
the close family contact would take place at the residence and that the 
application did have unanswered questions in relation to parking and the 

Page 8



 

 

domestic situation.  Other Members re-iterated concerns regarding visitors to 
the property ie psychologists, social services, police and at all times of day 
and night and that this could have a detrimental impact to neighbouring 
properties, the size of the property as it was a only a semi-detached house. 
 
The Planning Officer confirmed that there were three bedrooms, one for each 
of the children and one for the carer.  Due to the nature of the shift patterns, 
only one carer would be asleep during the night with the other carer on hand 
to support the children with any issues on a rota basis and the office space 
would be used for this purpose.  
 
The Development Management Service Delivery Manager confirmed that 
Planning related to the land use and there was no detrimental impact to 
amenities.  The property had previously been extended to house a family unit 
and had been smaller.  Ofsted would oversee any potential provider for the 
children in care and that they would have to provide a safe and satisfactory 
environment. 
 
Upon being put to the vote it was, by a majority:- 
 
RESOLVED – that delegated authority be granted to the Delivery 
Management Service Delivery Manager to grant full planning permission 
subject to the conditions contained within the report (with authority to 
finalise Condition(s) to be delegated to Development Management 
Service Delivery Manager). 
 
The meeting ended at 7.13 pm 

 
Chairman:   

 
Date: 

 
Wednesday 19 October 2022 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
The Background Papers taken into account when considering planning applications 
on this list include all or some of the following items. Items 1 to 4 are included on the 
file for each individual application.  
 

1. Application: includes the application form, certificate under Section 65 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act, 1990, plans, and any further supporting 
information submitted with the application. 

 
2. Further correspondence with applicant: includes any amendments to the 

application – including any letters to the applicant/agent with respect to the 
application and any further correspondence submitted by the applicant/agent, 
together with any revised details and/or plans. 

 
3. Letters from Statutory Bodies: includes any relevant letters to and from the 

Parish Councils, Departments of Telford & Wrekin Council, Water Authorities 
and other public bodies and societies. 

 
4. Letters from Private Individuals: includes any relevant letters to and from 

members of the public with respect to the application, unless the writers have 
asked that their views are not reported publicly. 

 
5. Statutory Plans and Informal Policy Documents: some or all of the following 

documents will comprise general background papers taken into account in 
considering planning applications in the administrative area of Telford and 
Wrekin (“Telford and Wrekin”) 

 
a) Telford & Wrekin Local Plan 2011-2031 (adopted 11th January 

2018)including any Neighbourhood Plans 
 

b) Telford and Wrekin Supplementary Planning Documents: 
 

 Design for Community Safety SPD (adopted June 2008); 

 Telecommunications Development SPD (adopted May 2009); and 

 Shop Fronts, Signage and Design Guidance in Conservation Areas 
SPD (adopted April 2012) 

 
c) Government Planning Guidance – National Planning Policy     

Framework(NPPF), Planning Practice Guidance and Circulars 
 

d) Town and Country Planning legislation, case law and other planning  
      decisions and articles 
 

6. Past decision notices and reports referred to in specific reports. 
 

7. The following additional documents (if appropriate):- 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

TWC/2022/0210  
Site of 2 Elim Terrace, Trench Road, Trench, Telford, Shropshire 
Erection of 1no. dwelling for use as a house of multiple occupation *****amended 
plans received*****  
 
APPLICANT RECEIVED 
Granville Construction & Maintenance Ltd 09/03/2022 
 
PARISH WARD 
Wrockwardine Wood and Trench Wrockwardine Wood and Trench 
 
THIS APPLICATION HAS BEEN CALLED IN TO BE DETERMINED BY 
PLANNING COMMITTEE AT THE REQUEST OF CLLR. SHIRLEY REYNOLDS 
  
 
On-line Application File: 
https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-
applicationsummary.aspx?applicationnumber=TWC/2022/0210  
 
1. SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION  
 
1.1 It is recommended that DELEGATED AUTHORITY be granted to the 

Development Management Service Delivery Manager to GRANT FULL 
PLANNING PERMISSION subject to Condition(s) and Informative(s). 

 
2.  SITE AND SURROUNDINGS 
 
2.1 The site is located in the centre of the historic area of Trench, approximately 

2.2 miles from Telford’s Town Centre District. The site is located to the side 

and rear of No. 2 Elim Terrace. 

 
2.2 Elim Terrace is located on Trench Road in Trench, close to the Trench Lock 

interchange highway system. The street includes a variety of property types, 

including a large number of terraced dwellings immediately adjacent to and 

opposite the site, and some detached and semi-detached dwellings further 

along Trench Road. The area has a strong building line, with predominantly 

frontage led development facing Trench Road. 

 
2.3 The site backs onto a dense area of woodland to the south, owned by 

the Canal & River Trust which separates the site from Trench Pool. 
There is also a parcel of Council owned land containing trees to the 
west. 

 
3.  PROPOSAL 
 
3.1 This application is for a full planning application for the erection of 1no. 

Dwelling on the site of No 2 Elim Terrace to be used as a House in Multiple 

Occupation (HMO) with a maximum of 3no. lettable bedrooms. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6a

https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-applicationsummary.aspx?applicationnumber=TWC/2022/0210
https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-applicationsummary.aspx?applicationnumber=TWC/2022/0210


 

 

 

3.2 The proposal seeks approval for 1no. Detached dwelling, proposed to be 

located in the side and rear garden of the existing property No 2 Elim Terrace. 

The property would be set back within the site, and an access track would be 

provided leading to the rear of the property where a parking area is proposed 

for the application property and No. 2 Elim Terrace. A rear garden is also 

proposed, providing private amenity space. 

 
3.3 The site would be accessed from Trench Road, utilising the existing access 

which is in place to serve No. 2 Elim Terrace.  
 
3.4 To the south and west of the site there exist areas of well-established trees, 

outside the application site boundary. The trees in the parcel to the east of the 
site are owned by Telford & Wrekin Council. The area to the rear (south) is 
privately owned by the Canal & River Trust. Both parcels surrounding the site 
are designated as Green Network land. 

 
3.4 Through the course of the application, an amended Block Plan was submitted 

to provide more detail on the access arrangements and proposed 
landscaping. A re-consultation was carried out accordingly. 

 
4.  RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
 
4.1 TWC/2020/0992 - Erection of 1no. Dwelling for use as a House in Multiple 

Occupation - Full Refused 
 
4.2 TWC/2015/0534 - Erection of 1no. Dwelling for use as House in Multiple 

Occupation - Full Refused 
  
5.  PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT 
 
5.1 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)  
 
5.2 Telford & Wrekin Local Plan 2011-2031 (TWLP):  

 
SP1: Telford   

 SP4:  Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
HO1:  Housing Requirement  

 NE1:  Biodiversity and Geodiversity  
 NE2: Trees, Hedgerows and Woodlands 
 NE6:  Green Network 

C3: Impact of Development on Highways  
 BE1: Design Criteria 
 ER11: Sewerage Systems and Water Quality 
 ER12: Flood Risk Management 
 
6. CONSULTATION RESPONSES SUMMARY 
 

As a result of the submission of additional information, the comments below 
have been summarised from across two separate consultation periods.  

Page 14



 

 

 

6.1 Standard Consultation Responses 
 
6.2 Wrockwardine Wood & Trench Parish Council: Object: 
 

 Raised concerns regarding overdevelopment of the site, parking and 
proximity to the Trench Lock junction.  

 
6.3 Cllr Shirley Reynolds Object: 
 

 Request determination by the Council’s Planning Committee should it be 
recommended for approval; 

 Concern regarding the proximity of the development to the Trench Lock 
interchange and the increase in vehicles utilising the site on a busy road; 

 Consider the HMO would be out of keeping with the character of the area;  

 Cannot see any change from previous applications which were refused; 

 Limited notification of consultees within the area.  
 
6.4 Highways: Support subject to Condition(s): 
 

 Amended parking layout is considered to be acceptable as it would 
provide sufficient parking provision to accommodate the use and allow 
vehicles to exit the site in forward gear; 

 Recommend the inclusion of a Condition requesting that the parking and 
turning area is provided prior to the occupation of the building. 

 
6.5 Drainage: Support subject to Condition(s): 
  

 Condition recommended requesting a scheme of foul and surface water 
drainage is submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA prior to works 
commencing on site. 

 
6.6 Ecology: Support subject to Condition(s): 
 

 Request Condition for a lighting plan to be submitted and approved in 
writing prior to the dwelling becoming occupied. 

  
6.7 Shropshire Fire Service: Comment: 
 

 Consideration should be given to information contained with Shropshire 
Fire Safety Guidance document. 

 
6.8 Canal & River Trust: Comment: 

 Development be carried out in accordance with relevant legislation in 
relation to dust pollution or wind-blown waste to limit impact upon the 
canal; 

 Should protective fencing for the trees to the south be required, the 
Applicant shall contact the Canal Trust’s first. 

 

Page 15



 

 

 

6.9 Arboriculture: Support subject to Condition(s): 

 Following receipt of a Tree Survey and Arboricultural impact assessment, 
the previous objection is withdrawn; 

 The existing fencing would act as tree protection in this case; 

 A tree replacement condition will be required for the Applicant to replace 
the Silver Birch they felled prior to the application being submitted;  

 A full landscaping scheme should also be submitted so the location of the 
replacement tree can be viewed as part of the overall landscape strategy. 

 
6.10 Neighbour Consultation Responses 
 
6.11 Eight consultation letters have been sent to the immediately surrounding 

neighbours in order to advertise this proposal and as a result, five letters of 

objection from three residential properties have been received raising the 

following material planning concerns: 

 

 Overdevelopment of the site; 

 HMO out of keeping with the surrounding area and inappropriate; 

 Impact upon nature and wildlife; 

 Removal of trees; 

 Concerns regarding the number of cars utilising the site and the 

impacts on the already heavily congested Trench Lock interchange 

adjacent; 

 Poor drainage and water pressure in the area. 

 

The following comments have also been received, however are not material 
planning considerations: 

 

 Rights of access to the rear not shown on the plans and interested 

parties in the right of access have not been consulted; 

 The boundary fence of the site has had a change of position since the 

last application has been submitted, and a query raised as to whether 

the Applicant has purchased additional land. 

 

7.  PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
 
7.1 Having regard to the Development Plan Policy and other material 

considerations including comments received during the consultation process, 
the planning application raises the following main issues: 

 

 Principle of Development 

 Scale and Design of the Proposal 

 Impact on Neighbour Amenity  

 Highways Considerations  

 Response to Neighbour Comments  

Page 16



 

 

 

 
 
Principle of Development 

 
7.2 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Act (2004) states that 

applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance with 

the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

 

7.3 The application site is located in Trench, an established residential area and 

is located within the built up area of the borough as shown within the Telford & 

Wrekin Local Plan Policies Map. Here, the principle of new residential 

development is considered to be broadly acceptable. However, to be 

supported, sites would need to be suitably sized, appropriately located, and 

accessed safely in addition to satisfying other relevant local plan policies. Any 

development will also need to satisfy the amenities of adjacent residents and 

land users.  

 

7.4 It is noted that the application is for the erection of a dwelling to be used as a 

House of Multiple Occupation (HMO) with three bedrooms rather than a 

traditional family dwelling. A small HMO falls under Use Class C4 and can 

accommodate between three and six residents. Under Permitted 

Development, a home owner can change a property from a family property 

(Use Class C3) to a small HMO (Use Class C4) without requiring planning 

consent, and the same applies to the reverse. 

 

7.5 As such, whilst the application is specifically for a HMO, as it is has three 

bedrooms it would fall under Use Class C4 as a small HMO and would 

therefore be assessed under the same considerations as a three bedroom 

family dwelling. 

 

7.6 A number of comments have been raised during the consultation period 

raising concerns over the use of the property as a HMO rather than a family 

dwelling. Whilst the LPA acknowledge there may be concerns surrounding 

HMO properties, as the property would be for a small HMO, the impacts from 

a planning perspective would be no different to those associated with a typical 

three bedroom dwelling. In addition, the land owner could construct the 

property as a family dwelling and then change the use to a small HMO once 

the property has been finished and occupied, the same of which could be 

applied to any of the properties nearby, provided they have no more than 6 

residents. As such the change would be a permitted use once the property 

has been completed, and the LPA has no reasonable grounds to object to the 

proposal on this basis. 

 

Page 17



 

 

 

7.7 It is acknowledged that there have been two previous planning applications 

submitted on the site for the same proposal, one in 2015 and another in 2020. 

Whilst both applications were refused, none of the reasons for refusal related 

to the principle of new residential development. The reasons for refusal 

related to concerns raised by the Council’s technical consultees, namely 

Highways and Trees, and due to the siting, design, scale and massing of the 

building. 

 

7.8 With regards to the technical reasons for refusal, the highways refusal will be 

addressed within the ‘Highways Considerations’ section. In respect of trees, 

the application was previously refused as the Applicant had failed to provide a 

Tree Survey and Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AIA), which assessed the 

impact of the proposal upon the trees located on the adjoining land, in 

particular to the West. With the absence of this information, an informed 

decision could not be made by the LPA. The current application has been 

submitted with a Tree Survey and AIA, which concludes that the development 

put forward would not adversely impact upon the neighbouring trees, provided 

adequate protective measures are put in place prior to commencement. The 

site is already enclosed with close board fencing which would act as the 

protective fencing in this instance and shall be conditioned to remain in place 

to protect the trees. A Tree Replacement condition and full landscaping 

scheme will also be required. The LPA consider as a result that there are no 

longer any reasonable grounds to object to the proposal in relation to trees 

and the previous reason for refusal has been addressed. 

 

7.9 Based on the conclusions above, the site is considered to be in a sustainable 

location for new residential development, close to shops, schools and 

services in Trench and as such is in accordance with the aims of Policy SP4 

of the Telford & Wrekin Local Plan. The principle of development on this site 

is therefore considered to be acceptable. 

 

Scale and Design of the Proposal   
 
7.10 The scheme put forward is for the erection of 1no. Dwelling for use as a HMO 

and would be a three bedroom property, with private amenity space and 
parking spaces located to the rear and an access track running from the front 
of the site, down to the parking spaces at the rear. 

 
7.11 Policy BE1 of the Telford & Wrekin Local Plan advises that developments 

should respect and respond positively to their context, whilst also retaining 
historic street patterns and representing an integrated design approach. It is 
acknowledged that the 2020 application, ref.: TWC/2020/0992, was refused 
on three grounds, one of which related to the siting, scale and design of the 
property. The positioning of the property, along with the elevation and 
floorplans for the property have not changed since the submission of the 2020 

Page 18



 

 

 

however the Applicant’s Agent has submitted a report addressing the reason 
for refusal.  

 
7.12 The Local Planning Authority (LPA) previously advised that the siting, scale, 

design and massing of the proposed development was considered to be 
inappropriate as it would fail to address the traditional street pattern and as a 
result of lack of information relating to trees and highways, the scheme would 
appear cramped within the site overall, failing to comply with policies SP4 and 
BE1 of the Telford & Wrekin Local Plan. The Applicant’s Agent has submitted 
a report in support of the current application which highlights a number of 
similar arrangements across Trench Road, demonstrating that the streetscene 
includes a variety of property types and designs and a number of 
developments set-back from the highway have been approved by the LPA in 
recent years. The Applicant’s Agent also highlighted that without the set-back, 
appropriate parking and access arrangements would not be able to be 
provided, and that the set-back is the only appropriate solution to address all 
previous comments. 

 
7.13 The LPA have taken on board the evidence submitted and consider that whilst 

the development would be set-back from the row of terraced houses, it would 
have a similar arrangement to other properties further down Trench Road 
where the building line is less prominent and therefore, on balance, will not 
have a significant detrimental impact upon the character of the wider area 
which exhibits a more varied street pattern. The LPA also acknowledge that 
the access and parking arrangements proposed would not be possible without 
the setback position. 

 
7.14 The property put forward has been designed to take reference from the 

terraced dwellings adjacent to it along Elim Terrace whilst also maximising the 
use of the space on site, and whilst it would be set-back, from the streetscene 
it would still be viewed as an integrated design and be sympathetic to the 
existing development. In addition, as adequate private amenity space and 
parking provision have been provided and it has been demonstrated that the 
trees on site would not be significantly affected by the proposal, the scheme 
would not result in such a cramped proposal as previously envisaged. Whilst 
the property would be set-back, it would still represent an integrated design 
approach and therefore would not present significant harm to the character of 
the area. 

 
7.15 Conditions will be applied to the consent to request full details of hard and soft 

landscaping and external materials to ensure the property is constructed to a 
high quality and is sympathetic to the traditional terraced houses adjacent.  

 
7.16 Whilst concern was previously raised regarding the siting, scale, design and 

massing of the proposal, following the assessment of the additional evidence 
submitted, the LPA consider the scheme can be supported on balance as it 
would not have an adverse impact upon the character of the area and would 
not present significant harm to warrant a refusal in respect of siting, scale and 
design. When viewing the application overall, taking into account both the 

Page 19



 

 

 

design context and highways requirements, the scheme can be considered 
consistent with Policies SP4 and BE1 of the Telford & Wrekin Local Plan. 

 
 
Impact on Neighbour Amenity 
 

7.17 Policy BE1 of the TWLP states that development should not prejudice existing 
properties or uses. The property has one directly adjoining neighbour, No. 2 
Elim Terrace which is included within the Application blue line which therefore 
falls within the same ownership. It is considered that due to the set-back 
position of the property, the distance between the property proposed and 
those existing adjacent, and that there would be no first floor windows facing 
towards the garden of No. 2 Elim Terrace, it is considered the scheme would 
result in no significant detrimental impacts upon the residential amenity of 
neighbouring residents. 

 
7.18 As a result, the scheme is considered to be compliant with Policy BE1 in this 

respect. 
 

Highways Considerations  
 
7.19 The proposal includes a revised Block Plan which provides more detail 

regarding the access and parking arrangements. The property would utilise an 
existing access off Trench Road which is currently used by No. 2 Elim 
Terrace, forming a new access track down the side of the property to form a 
parking area to the rear, which would sit alongside the private amenity space. 
The parking area would provide off-street parking spaces for both No. 2 Elim 
Terrace and the 3no. bedroom HMO proposed. 

 
7.20 Whilst as part of the 2015 and 2020 applications, the Council’s Highways 

Officer did raise an objection, this was due to a number of reasons which 
have been addressed by the current submission. In the 2015 application, the 
dwelling was proposed to be located directly off the highway, not set back and 
only provided one parking space to the front of the property with no turning 
area, which the LPA considered appropriate as it would result in occupants 
reversing out onto Trench Road, resulting in a highway safety concern. During 
the 2020 application, the dwelling was set back from the highway, creating an 
improvement from a highways perspective however there was significant lack 
of detail provided on the access arrangements. 

 
7.21 The current application is considered to be appropriate from a highways 

perspective as it addresses the previous reasons for refusal and creates a 
betterment to the existing arrangement on site. The area at the front of the 
site is currently used as a driveway for No. 2 Elim Terrace and whilst it has 
capacity to accommodate at least 4no. cars, when all spaces are filled there is 
no ability to turn within the site to allow cars to exit in forward gear. The 
proposal put forward would remove parking at the front of the site by 
narrowing the hard surfacing and encourage users to utilise the parking 
spaces and turning area at the rear of the site, therefore ensuring vehicles 
leave the site in forward gear. 

Page 20



 

 

 

 
7.22 Due to the improved situation proposed, the LPA consider that there would be 

a reduced impact upon traffic to and from Trench Road, despite the additional 
cars using the site as occupants would be able to exit more safely, in forward 
gear.  

7.23 A number of comments have been raised during the consultation period 
regarding highway safety surrounding the access due to the proximity to the 
Trench Lock Interchange junction. Due to the arrangements described above, 
and that the cumulative impact of one additional dwelling would not result in a 
significant detrimental impact upon the highway network, the Local Highways 
Authority has raised no objection to the revised scheme, subject to the 
inclusion of a condition requiring the parking and turning area to be carried out 
prior to the occupation of the building. 

 
7.24 Overall the revised scheme addresses the previous reasons for refusal, 

creates a betterment to the existing arrangements on site and is therefore 
consistent with Policy C3 of the Telford & Wrekin Local Plan. 

 
 Response to Neighbour Comments 
 
7.25 With regards to the comments raised during the consultation period, a number 

of these have been addressed throughout the report, namely the 
overdevelopment of the site, the use of the building as a HMO and the 
concerns regarding parking and congestion. 

 
7.26 In respect of the other issues raised, these will be addressed below. A 

number of concerns were raised regarding the removal of trees on site prior to 
the grant of any formal approval and the impact the scheme may have upon 
wildlife in the surrounding woodland. It does appear that some works were 
undertaken to a limited number of trees inside the application site and those 
overhanging the boundary to the west of the site, owned by the Council, prior 
to the application being resubmitted. As none of the trees on the site are 
subject to Tree Preservation Orders (TPOs), the Council could not prevent the 
Applicant removing these, as they do not require consent to be removed. With 
regards to trees overhanging the boundary, legally the Applicant is allowed to 
cut back anything overhanging from a neighbour’s land, and this would be a 
civil agreement between themselves and the land owner. The Tree Survey 
covers a large number of trees on and adjacent to the site boundary and it 
does not appear any significant tree removal has taken place. Where trees 
have been removed, for instance a Silver Birch which was felled prior to the 
application being submitted, the Council’s Tree Officer has requested a Tree 
Replacement Condition so the LPA can ensure a suitable replacement is 
planted. 

 
7.27 With regards to the impact upon nature and wildlife, the development would 

be taking place on land which is existing garden land to No. 2 Elim Terrace 
and would not encroach into the woodland to the south or west. The Council’s 
Ecology Officer was consulted on the proposal and did not consider any 
further information was required regarding protected species in this instance, 
given the existing status of the land as garden land and recommended 

Page 21



 

 

 

Condition(s) only for a lighting plan to be submitted, should the Applicant wish 
to install any external lighting. Whilst the land surrounding the site is Green 
Network land, as the development would not encroach into it, the Green 
Network would not be affected by the development. 

 
7.28 A comment has been raised regarding poor drainage and water pressure in 

the area, and concerns over how the development will impact the existing 
drainage system. At this stage the Applicant has indicated that the foul 
drainage will be disposed of using the mains sewer, and the surface water by 
using a soakaway system. The Council’s Drainage Officer has been formally 
consulted on the proposals and has raised no objection to this arrangement 
on the provision that a full scheme of foul and surface water drainage, 
including plans and calculations is submitted to and approved by the LPA 
prior to works commencing on-site. As such the LPA has no reason to object 
to the scheme on drainage grounds.  In respect of water pressure this is a 
matter which sits outside of planning control with a statutory duty falling on the 
provider, Severn Trent Water, to provide a satisfactory supply.  

 
7.29 A number of other comments came forward which are not material planning 

considerations, predominately consisting of queries relating to land ownership 
and rights of access. The LPA do not hold records of land ownership or rights 
of access, unless they are a designated Public Right of Way (PRoW) and the 
LPA rely on the Applicants to submit an ownership certificate declaring the 
correct ownership details. In this instance, the LPA have no reason to 
question the ownership of the site as it has been declared that the Applicant 
owns the whole site. 

 
7.30 With regards to rights of access, a neighbour has declared that there is a right 

of access around the rear of the site and therefore they should be consulted 
on applications relating to this site as they have an interest in the land. Cllr. 
Shirley Reynolds has also raised concerns that sufficient consultation was not 
carried out. The LPA do not hold any records of rights of access as these are 
civil matters between land owners, and public consultation is not based on 
land ownership. Any issues relating to rights of access would be civil matters 
between the Applicant and interested parties, and would not be considered as 
part of the planning process. 

 
7.31 In respect of consultation, legally the Government requires the LPA to consult 

all parties who adjoin the red line boundary of the application site, which in 
this instance would consist of No. 2 Elim Terrace. However the Council’s 
Statement of Community Involvement states that properties adjacent the 
development site will be consulted which in this instance involved Nos. 1 and 
2 Jubilee Terrace opposite. In this instance, as concern was raised regarding 
consultation during the 2020 application, the LPA has gone beyond the typical 
requirements and also consulted all those who commented on the earlier 
application for consistency, including Nos. 4, 6 and 8 Elim Terrace, and a 
number of properties on Jubilee Terrace opposite the site. As such, the LPA 
consider adequate consultation has taken place and the legal requirements 
for the exercise have been satisfied. 

 

Page 22



 

 

 

7.32 As a result of the points made above, the LPA considers the concerns 
submitted as part of the consultation period have been satisfactorily 
addressed.  

 
8.  CONCLUSIONS 
 
8.1 The principle of new residential development on the site is considered to be 

acceptable as it would see the delivery of 1no. additional housing unit in a 
sustainable location. When weighing up the benefits of the proposal through 
improvement of the access and parking arrangements on site, overall the 
scheme can be accepted and the siting, scale, massing and design would not 
introduce any significant adverse harm to the character of the area or 
neighbouring properties. The previous reasons for refusal have been 
addressed, and the scheme is consistent with the Telford & Wrekin Local Plan 
policies and national guidance contained within the NPPF. 

 
9.  RECOMMENDATION  
 
9.1 Based on the Conclusions above, the recommendation to the Planning 

Committee on this application is that DELEGATED AUTHORITY be granted 
to the Development Management Service Delivery Manager to GRANT 
PLANNING PERMISSION subject to the following Condition(s) and 
Informative(s): 

 
 Condition(s): 
 

Time Limit 
Details of Materials to be Submitted 
Foul and Surface Water Drainage  
Landscape Design 
Tree Replacements  
Details of External Lighting to be Submitted 
Site Environmental Management Plan 
Parking, Turning, Loading and Unloading  
Tree & Hedge Protection 
Works in Accordance with the Approved Plans 
Removal of all Permitted Development Rights  
 

Informative(s): 
Nesting Wild Birds 
Fire Authority  
Conditions 
Reasons for Grant of Planning Permission 

 
 
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

TWC/2022/0804  
Land west of, Hollinshead Way, Old Park, Telford, Shropshire 
Removal of condition no2 and variation of condition no3 of planning permission 
TWC/2016/1119 (Importation of clean soil to test ground stability) to show the 
precise location within which materials will be tipped and rolled to create a 
surcharged mount and new stockpile area (Mound B)   
 
APPLICANT RECEIVED 
Telford and Wrekin Council 28/09/2022 
 
PARISH WARD 
Lawley and Overdale Ketley and Overdale 
 
THIS APPLICATION HAS BEEN REFERRED TO PLANNING COMMITTEE AS 

THE COUNCIL IS THE APPLICANT AND LANDOWNER AND THE PROPOSAL IS 

A MAJOR APPLICATION (SITE AREA MORE THAN 1HA) 

 

Online planning file: https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-
applicationsummary.aspx?applicationnumber=TWC/2022/0804  
 
1. SUMMARY RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
It is recommended that DELEGATED AUTHORITY be granted to the Development 
Management Service Delivery Manager to GRANT FULL PLANNING PERMISSION 
subject to conditions and informatives. 
 
2. APPLICATION SITE 
 
2.1 The application site is located to the west of Hollinshead Way and the north of 

West Centre Way in the Old Park area of Telford. The site is located 
approximately 1km west of Telford Town Centre. 

 
2.2 The proposed development would sit on a site measuring 4,500sqm within a 

larger 10.8 hectare parcel of open land. It can be accessed either from a 
roundabout junction in Hollinshead Way to the east or an existing field gate 
from Old Park Way to the west. The wider site is enclosed on 3 sides by a 
mature tree belt. 

 
2.3 Thomas Telford Secondary School and The Wrekin Housing Group offices 

are located to the east. The nearest residential properties to the site are 
located approximately 130 metres to the west beyond Old Park Way, 
approximately 200m to the south west on Cambridge Close and to the north 
across Colliers Way 

 
3. APPLICATION DETAILS 

 
3.1 The application proposes the importation of clean soil to the site in order to 

carry out surcharging works to improve ground strength and to monitor the 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6b

https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-applicationsummary.aspx?applicationnumber=TWC/2022/0804
https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-applicationsummary.aspx?applicationnumber=TWC/2022/0804


 

 

 

settlement of the ground. All works will be carried out within the 4,500sqm site 
identified on the submitted Block Plan as ‘Mound B.’ 

 
4. PLANNING HISTORY 
 
4.1 TWC/2016/1119 - Importation of clean soil to test ground stability - Granted 

23 January 2017 
 

4.2 TWC/2018/0804 - Importing of clean soil to surcharge the ground and improve 
the ground strength – Granted 1 November 2018 

 
5. RELEVANT POLICY DOCUMENTS 

 
5.1 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

 
5.2 Telford & Wrekin Local Plan 2011-2031 
 
6. NEIGHBOUR REPRESENTATIONS 
 
6.1 The 21-day public consultation period expires on 19 October 2022 but due to 

the press notice the final consultation date is 27 October 2022. At the time of 
writing the report no comments have been received. Any comments will be 
reported as updates prior to the meeting. 
 

6.2 TWC Highways: Comment 

 Having given consideration to the applicant’s reasons for the hours of 
operation of 07.30 to 16.30 these are considered acceptable subject to a 
condition; 

 120 HGV movements per day equates to 240 trips. This would work out 
as roughly 26 per hour or one every 2-ish minutes. In the context of the 
duration of the soil import lasting one month this does not raise any 
significant concerns in terms of capacity or highway safety issues; 

 The anti-mud management proposals are acceptable and a condition is 
requested to secure and monitor these; 

 The proposals to reinstate the conditions of the access once the 
importation is complete are acceptable and a condition is requested 
securing a pre-works and post-works survey; 

 Further information is required regarding the operation of the access in 
the event of simultaneous HGV use to ensure arrangements on and off 
Old Park Way, a class B road, is acceptable. 

 
7. STATUTORY REPRESENTATIONS 
 
7.1 The statutory consultation period expires on 19 October 2022. At the time of 

writing the report no comments have been received. Any further comments 
will be reported as updates prior to the meeting. 

 
8. APPRAISAL 

 

Page 34



 

 

 

8.1 Having regard to the development plan policy and other material 

considerations including comments received during the consultation process, 

the planning application raises the following main issues:  

 Principle of development 

 Highway considerations 

 Ecology 

 Residential Amenity 

 Mining considerations 

 Other matters 

8.2 Background 
 
8.3 The site historically contained opencast coal mining works which have since 

been backfilled. Ground investigation works carried out in 2016 confirmed that 
a significant depth of made ground is present across the majority of the site 
which locally reaches depths in excess of 30 metres. Investigations have 
been carried out to test the susceptibility of the ground to improvement. In 
2017, planning permission ref.: TWC/2016/1119 was granted to allow the 
importation of clean soil to a part of the site measuring 1 hectare to carry out 
surcharging works.  
 

8.4 The process of ‘surcharging’ involves a specific height and area of soil being 
placed in a bespoke part of the site and the settlement of the underlying 
ground measured for up to a year. To enable this to happen, a lot of clean 
imported material is required, which can be ‘stacked’ in a controlled manner to 
create an increased load at the surface. The resulting settlement of the 
ground is then monitored and recorded as a means of testing ground stability.  
 

8.5 A second consent was approved under TWC/2018/0804 which permitted 
further importation of soil within a 1 hectare area in the south-west corner of 
the site to surcharge the ground and improve ground strength (referred to as 
Mound A in the application under consideration). This consent allows 
sufficient importation of soil to cover an area of 4,500sqm up to a height of 
5m. To date Mound A contains soil up to 2m in height and therefore retains 
capacity to accommodate more soil as part of the 2018 consent. 

 
8.6 This application is a variation to the 2016 consent and therefore the principle 

of development is accepted. The proposal is to again seek permission for the 
importing of soil to the site, this time to the area identified as ‘Mound B’ on the 
proposed plans. The works will take place on a 1 hectare parcel of land in the 
centre-south west corner of the wider 10.8 hectare site, immediately north of 
Mound A.  
 

8.7 The amount of soil being proposed for importation is 36,000 cubic metres. 
Some of this will be directed towards Mound B and some will go to the 
previously consented Mound A, which has capacity to receive more soil than it 

Page 35



 

 

 

currently has under consent TWC/2018/0804. In real terms, Mound A has 
consent to be up to 5m in height and the applicant advises that the soil import 
would increase the height of Mound A to 4.5m, which remains under the 
original allowance. 
 

8.8 Highway considerations 
 

8.9 As with the previous applications, the main issues is the provision of access to 
the site and the likely impact upon the highways network. The works will 
require HGV trips to and from the site, utilising access points to the west via 
an existing gateway onto Old Park Way. A key difference between this 
application and the previous consents is that the site access to the east from 
the roundabout off Hollinshead Way is no longer proposed and therefore all 
HGV movement would use the single access onto Old Park Way.  
 

8.10 This is because there is now a steep drop into the site from the eastern 
access, which would need significant earthworks to make it safe for HGV 
passage across the drain which crosses the site. Furthermore, the land 
around the eastern access is wet and marshy and creating an access road 
through the wet land would be difficult. The applicant also wishes to reduce 
the amount of contact between HGVs and Thomas Telford School given the 
increased number of HGV movements proposed this time, as detailed below. 
 

8.11 Whereas the previous applications expected the import of materials on an ad 
hoc basis depending on when donor sites became available, a difference with 
this application is that the donor site (located in Telford town centre) is known 
and therefore the length of import, HGV route and proposed number of HGV 
movements a day have all been submitted. The import is planned to take 
place in a concentrated period which dovetails with works taking place on the 
donor site. This would amount to approximately one month (Mondays to 
Saturdays) with 120 HGV movements a day (10 deliveries per lorry) based on 
hours of operation of 0730 to 1630. The Local Highways Authority have 
confirmed that these arrangements are acceptable, particularly as the import 
is expected to last one month. 
 

8.12 HGV movements onto the site will need to be managed to avoid any queuing 
on the highways outside the site and the Local Highways Authority have 
requested more information on these arrangements from the application. This 
will be reported to committee either prior to or at the time of the meeting. 
 

8.13 Whilst the proposal will increase vehicle movements to and from the site, 
officers again take the view that any disruption would only be temporary and 
short term in nature. The site is easily accessible using main roads and 
therefore is unlikely to result in any significant, prolonged impact upon the 
highway network within the vicinity of the site. Officers are also satisfied that 
suitable traffic management measures can be put in place to minimise 
potential disruption to motorists and pedestrians, with the caveat of the 
information requested from the applicant described in para 8.12. 
 

8.14 Ecology 

Page 36



 

 

 

8.15 An Ecological Method Statement has been submitted as part of the 
application and is being assessed by the Council’s Ecologists. Comments 
received will be reported to Members prior to or at the time of the committee 
meeting. 
 

8.16 Residential Amenity 
 

8.17 With regard to residential amenity, the nearest properties are located 50 
metres from the western access and a significantly greater distance to the 
area where the soil tipping will take place. The works are proposed to be 
carried out between 7.30 and 16.30 Monday to Saturday and at no time on 
Sundays or Bank Holidays at which times, background noise within the area is 
likely to reasonably high, primarily resulting from traffic on the busy road 
network surrounding the site. Members are asked to note the previous 
consent granted hours of operation from 07.00 to 19.30 and the reduction in 
these hours reflects the increased intensity of HGV movements.  
 

8.18 As such, it is not considered that the proposal would result in any significant 
harm to the amenities of the nearest residents. 
 

8.19 Mining considerations 
 

8.20 The applicant has provided a Coal Authority Mining Report, which confirms 
two recorded mineshaft position below the southern edge of Mound B. The 
Coal Authority report confirms that both mineshafts have been dugout during 
opencast mining operations in 1976-77 and therefore recorded mineshafts do 
not exist below the surcharge footprint (i.e. Mound B). 
 

8.21 Other Matters 
 
8.22 No concerns in terms of drainage issues are raised and all imported soil will 

be tested and approved under the CL:AIRE protocol prior to entering the site, 
thus certifying receipt of clean materials from controlled sources. 
 

8.23 The applicant advises that if the soil can be imported to the Old Park Campus 
it would avoid it having to be taken out of borough to landfill. This would 
represent a significant cost-saving as well as contributing towards the 
Council’s carbon neutral aspirations. 

 
9. CONCLUSION 

 
9.1 The proposal is therefore deemed to be compliant with the Telford & Wrekin 

Local Plan 2011-2031 and the guidance contained within the NPPF. 
 
 
10. DETAILED RECOMMENDATION 
 
10.1 Based on the conclusions above, the recommendation to the Planning 

Committee on this application is to GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION to the 

Page 37



 

 

 

Development Management Service Delivery Manager, subject to the 
following: 
 
A) No further representations being received during what remains of the 

consultation period which raise material considerations which are, in the 
opinion of the Development Management Service Delivery Manager after 
consultation with the Chair of Planning Committee, of such significance 
that the application should be reported back to Planning Committee for re-
consideration and determination. 

 
B) Submission of information pertaining to the management of HGVs around 

site access on Old Park Way and agreement by Local Highways Authority; 
 
C) The following Condition(s) and Informative(s) (with authority to finalise and 

impose additional Conditions to be delegated to the Development 
Management Service Delivery Manager): 

 

A04 Full with No Reserved Matters  
B150 Constructive Environmental Management Plan (to include anti-

mud measures) 
B049 Pre-works and post-works survey on highway/access condition 
C020 Works in Accordance with Traffic Management/Routing Plan   
Ccust Chemical Certification 
C38 Development in Accordance with Plans 
D11 Hours of Work 

Any conditions requested by the Council’s Ecologist 
 
 

Page 38



 

 

 

TWC/2022/0804  
Land west of, Hollinshead Way, Old Park, Telford, Shropshire 
Removal of condition no2 and variation of condition no3 of planning permission 
TWC/2016/1119 (Importation of clean soil to test ground stability) to show the 
precise location within which materials will be tipped and rolled to create a 
surcharged mount and new stockpile area (Mound B)   
 
APPLICANT RECEIVED 
Telford and Wrekin Council 28/09/2022 
 
PARISH WARD 
Lawley and Overdale Ketley and Overdale 
 
THIS APPLICATION HAS BEEN REFERRED TO PLANNING COMMITTEE AS 

THE COUNCIL IS THE APPLICANT AND LANDOWNER AND THE PROPOSAL IS 

A MAJOR APPLICATION (SITE AREA MORE THAN 1HA) 

 

Online planning file: https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-
applicationsummary.aspx?applicationnumber=TWC/2022/0804  
 
1. SUMMARY RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
It is recommended that DELEGATED AUTHORITY be granted to the Development 
Management Service Delivery Manager to GRANT FULL PLANNING PERMISSION 
subject to conditions and informatives. 
 
2. APPLICATION SITE 
 
2.1 The application site is located to the west of Hollinshead Way and the north of 

West Centre Way in the Old Park area of Telford. The site is located 
approximately 1km west of Telford Town Centre. 

 
2.2 The proposed development would sit on a site measuring 4,500sqm within a 

larger 10.8 hectare parcel of open land. It can be accessed either from a 
roundabout junction in Hollinshead Way to the east or an existing field gate 
from Old Park Way to the west. The wider site is enclosed on 3 sides by a 
mature tree belt. 

 
2.3 Thomas Telford Secondary School and The Wrekin Housing Group offices 

are located to the east. The nearest residential properties to the site are 
located approximately 130 metres to the west beyond Old Park Way, 
approximately 200m to the south west on Cambridge Close and to the north 
across Colliers Way 

 
3. APPLICATION DETAILS 

 
3.1 The application proposes the importation of clean soil to the site in order to 

carry out surcharging works to improve ground strength and to monitor the 

Page 39

https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-applicationsummary.aspx?applicationnumber=TWC/2022/0804
https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-applicationsummary.aspx?applicationnumber=TWC/2022/0804


 

 

 

settlement of the ground. All works will be carried out within the 4,500sqm site 
identified on the submitted Block Plan as ‘Mound B.’ 

 
4. PLANNING HISTORY 
 
4.1 TWC/2016/1119 - Importation of clean soil to test ground stability - Granted 

23 January 2017 
 

4.2 TWC/2018/0804 - Importing of clean soil to surcharge the ground and improve 
the ground strength – Granted 1 November 2018 

 
5. RELEVANT POLICY DOCUMENTS 

 
5.1 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

 
5.2 Telford & Wrekin Local Plan 2011-2031 
 
6. NEIGHBOUR REPRESENTATIONS 
 
6.1 The 21-day public consultation period expires on 19 October 2022 but due to 

the press notice the final consultation date is 27 October 2022. At the time of 
writing the report no comments have been received. Any comments will be 
reported as updates prior to the meeting. 
 

6.2 TWC Highways: Comment 

 Having given consideration to the applicant’s reasons for the hours of 
operation of 07.30 to 16.30 these are considered acceptable subject to a 
condition; 

 120 HGV movements per day equates to 240 trips. This would work out 
as roughly 26 per hour or one every 2-ish minutes. In the context of the 
duration of the soil import lasting one month this does not raise any 
significant concerns in terms of capacity or highway safety issues; 

 The anti-mud management proposals are acceptable and a condition is 
requested to secure and monitor these; 

 The proposals to reinstate the conditions of the access once the 
importation is complete are acceptable and a condition is requested 
securing a pre-works and post-works survey; 

 Further information is required regarding the operation of the access in 
the event of simultaneous HGV use to ensure arrangements on and off 
Old Park Way, a class B road, is acceptable. 

 
7. STATUTORY REPRESENTATIONS 
 
7.1 The statutory consultation period expires on 19 October 2022. At the time of 

writing the report no comments have been received. Any further comments 
will be reported as updates prior to the meeting. 

 
8. APPRAISAL 

 

Page 40



 

 

 

8.1 Having regard to the development plan policy and other material 

considerations including comments received during the consultation process, 

the planning application raises the following main issues:  

 Principle of development 

 Highway considerations 

 Ecology 

 Residential Amenity 

 Mining considerations 

 Other matters 

8.2 Background 
 
8.3 The site historically contained opencast coal mining works which have since 

been backfilled. Ground investigation works carried out in 2016 confirmed that 
a significant depth of made ground is present across the majority of the site 
which locally reaches depths in excess of 30 metres. Investigations have 
been carried out to test the susceptibility of the ground to improvement. In 
2017, planning permission ref.: TWC/2016/1119 was granted to allow the 
importation of clean soil to a part of the site measuring 1 hectare to carry out 
surcharging works.  
 

8.4 The process of ‘surcharging’ involves a specific height and area of soil being 
placed in a bespoke part of the site and the settlement of the underlying 
ground measured for up to a year. To enable this to happen, a lot of clean 
imported material is required, which can be ‘stacked’ in a controlled manner to 
create an increased load at the surface. The resulting settlement of the 
ground is then monitored and recorded as a means of testing ground stability.  
 

8.5 A second consent was approved under TWC/2018/0804 which permitted 
further importation of soil within a 1 hectare area in the south-west corner of 
the site to surcharge the ground and improve ground strength (referred to as 
Mound A in the application under consideration). This consent allows 
sufficient importation of soil to cover an area of 4,500sqm up to a height of 
5m. To date Mound A contains soil up to 2m in height and therefore retains 
capacity to accommodate more soil as part of the 2018 consent. 

 
8.6 This application is a variation to the 2016 consent and therefore the principle 

of development is accepted. The proposal is to again seek permission for the 
importing of soil to the site, this time to the area identified as ‘Mound B’ on the 
proposed plans. The works will take place on a 1 hectare parcel of land in the 
centre-south west corner of the wider 10.8 hectare site, immediately north of 
Mound A.  
 

8.7 The amount of soil being proposed for importation is 36,000 cubic metres. 
Some of this will be directed towards Mound B and some will go to the 
previously consented Mound A, which has capacity to receive more soil than it 

Page 41



 

 

 

currently has under consent TWC/2018/0804. In real terms, Mound A has 
consent to be up to 5m in height and the applicant advises that the soil import 
would increase the height of Mound A to 4.5m, which remains under the 
original allowance. 
 

8.8 Highway considerations 
 

8.9 As with the previous applications, the main issues is the provision of access to 
the site and the likely impact upon the highways network. The works will 
require HGV trips to and from the site, utilising access points to the west via 
an existing gateway onto Old Park Way. A key difference between this 
application and the previous consents is that the site access to the east from 
the roundabout off Hollinshead Way is no longer proposed and therefore all 
HGV movement would use the single access onto Old Park Way.  
 

8.10 This is because there is now a steep drop into the site from the eastern 
access, which would need significant earthworks to make it safe for HGV 
passage across the drain which crosses the site. Furthermore, the land 
around the eastern access is wet and marshy and creating an access road 
through the wet land would be difficult. The applicant also wishes to reduce 
the amount of contact between HGVs and Thomas Telford School given the 
increased number of HGV movements proposed this time, as detailed below. 
 

8.11 Whereas the previous applications expected the import of materials on an ad 
hoc basis depending on when donor sites became available, a difference with 
this application is that the donor site (located in Telford town centre) is known 
and therefore the length of import, HGV route and proposed number of HGV 
movements a day have all been submitted. The import is planned to take 
place in a concentrated period which dovetails with works taking place on the 
donor site. This would amount to approximately one month (Mondays to 
Saturdays) with 120 HGV movements a day (10 deliveries per lorry) based on 
hours of operation of 0730 to 1630. The Local Highways Authority have 
confirmed that these arrangements are acceptable, particularly as the import 
is expected to last one month. 
 

8.12 HGV movements onto the site will need to be managed to avoid any queuing 
on the highways outside the site and the Local Highways Authority have 
requested more information on these arrangements from the application. This 
will be reported to committee either prior to or at the time of the meeting. 
 

8.13 Whilst the proposal will increase vehicle movements to and from the site, 
officers again take the view that any disruption would only be temporary and 
short term in nature. The site is easily accessible using main roads and 
therefore is unlikely to result in any significant, prolonged impact upon the 
highway network within the vicinity of the site. Officers are also satisfied that 
suitable traffic management measures can be put in place to minimise 
potential disruption to motorists and pedestrians, with the caveat of the 
information requested from the applicant described in para 8.12. 
 

8.14 Ecology 

Page 42



 

 

 

8.15 An Ecological Method Statement has been submitted as part of the 
application and is being assessed by the Council’s Ecologists. Comments 
received will be reported to Members prior to or at the time of the committee 
meeting. 
 

8.16 Residential Amenity 
 

8.17 With regard to residential amenity, the nearest properties are located 50 
metres from the western access and a significantly greater distance to the 
area where the soil tipping will take place. The works are proposed to be 
carried out between 7.30 and 16.30 Monday to Saturday and at no time on 
Sundays or Bank Holidays at which times, background noise within the area is 
likely to reasonably high, primarily resulting from traffic on the busy road 
network surrounding the site. Members are asked to note the previous 
consent granted hours of operation from 07.00 to 19.30 and the reduction in 
these hours reflects the increased intensity of HGV movements.  
 

8.18 As such, it is not considered that the proposal would result in any significant 
harm to the amenities of the nearest residents. 
 

8.19 Mining considerations 
 

8.20 The applicant has provided a Coal Authority Mining Report, which confirms 
two recorded mineshaft position below the southern edge of Mound B. The 
Coal Authority report confirms that both mineshafts have been dugout during 
opencast mining operations in 1976-77 and therefore recorded mineshafts do 
not exist below the surcharge footprint (i.e. Mound B). 
 

8.21 Other Matters 
 
8.22 No concerns in terms of drainage issues are raised and all imported soil will 

be tested and approved under the CL:AIRE protocol prior to entering the site, 
thus certifying receipt of clean materials from controlled sources. 
 

8.23 The applicant advises that if the soil can be imported to the Old Park Campus 
it would avoid it having to be taken out of borough to landfill. This would 
represent a significant cost-saving as well as contributing towards the 
Council’s carbon neutral aspirations. 

 
9. CONCLUSION 

 
9.1 The proposal is therefore deemed to be compliant with the Telford & Wrekin 

Local Plan 2011-2031 and the guidance contained within the NPPF. 
 
 
10. DETAILED RECOMMENDATION 
 
10.1 Based on the conclusions above, the recommendation to the Planning 

Committee on this application is to GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION to the 

Page 43



 

 

 

Development Management Service Delivery Manager, subject to the 
following: 
 
A) No further representations being received during what remains of the 

consultation period which raise material considerations which are, in the 
opinion of the Development Management Service Delivery Manager after 
consultation with the Chair of Planning Committee, of such significance 
that the application should be reported back to Planning Committee for re-
consideration and determination. 

 
B) Submission of information pertaining to the management of HGVs around 

site access on Old Park Way and agreement by Local Highways Authority; 
 
C) The following Condition(s) and Informative(s) (with authority to finalise and 

impose additional Conditions to be delegated to the Development 
Management Service Delivery Manager): 

 

A04 Full with No Reserved Matters  
B150 Constructive Environmental Management Plan (to include anti-

mud measures) 
B049 Pre-works and post-works survey on highway/access condition 
C020 Works in Accordance with Traffic Management/Routing Plan   
Ccust Chemical Certification 
C38 Development in Accordance with Plans 
D11 Hours of Work 

Any conditions requested by the Council’s Ecologist 
 
 

Page 44



90.0m

50.0m

Mound B:
Approx 90m x 50m = 4500m²

Key

Notes

Based on Ordnance Survey 1250 mapping with the permission of
the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office. Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead
to Prosecution or Civil proceedings.
Telford & Wrekin Council Licence No. 100019694 Date 2020

Drawing status

Drawing number

Scale

Drawing title

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING
Rev

ApprovedPurpose of revision

Project

Client

Rev Revision
Date

Drawn Checked

ApprovedDestinationIssue File Type Date

A0 Date Drawn-by Approved-by

Client

Dean Sargeant, Director, Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services, Addenbrooke House, Telford, TF3 4NT

Checked-by

L:\PROJECTS\LP\LP689 - OPC - Enabling Works\Drawings\CAD\DWG\LP689-101 Block Plan FINAL.dwg

Telford & Wrekin Council

LP689 - Old Park Campus

Block Plan
1 of 2

FINAL

LP689-101-1 0

05/10/20221:500 MG DK -

Existing Access

Proposed Direct Access

Proposed Monitoring Locations

Proposed Mound

Old Park Campus Site Boundary

P
age 45

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
172.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
SWEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
HEATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
WOODRUSH

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
175.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
CHESTNUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
COLLIERS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
183.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
178.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
OLD PARK WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
BILBERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
BROOM DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
Gov

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
COLLIERS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
Old Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
Electricity Sub Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
Drain



T
his page is intentionally left blank



90.0m

50.0m

Mound B:
Approx 90m x 50m = 4500m²

Based on Ordnance Survey 1250 mapping with the permission of
the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office. Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead
to Prosecution or Civil proceedings.
Telford & Wrekin Council Licence No. 100019694 Date 2020

Drawing status

Drawing number

Scale

Drawing title

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING
Rev

ApprovedPurpose of revision

Project

Client

Rev Revision
Date

Drawn Checked

ApprovedDestinationIssue File Type Date

A0 Date Drawn-by Approved-by

Client

Dean Sargeant, Director, Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services, Addenbrooke House, Telford, TF3 4NT

Checked-by

L:\PROJECTS\LP\LP689 - OPC - Enabling Works\Drawings\CAD\DWG\LP689-101 Block Plan FINAL.dwg

Telford & Wrekin Council

LP689 - Old Park Campus

Block Plan
2 of 2

FINAL

LP689-101-2 0

05/10/20221:500 MG DK -

Key

Notes

Existing Access

Proposed Direct Access

Proposed Monitoring Locations

Proposed Mound

Old Park Campus Site Boundary

P
age 47

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
ROCKALL WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
183.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
188.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
(odd)

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
69 to 75

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
CAMBRIDGE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
Cycle Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
WEST CENTRE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
OLD PARK ROUNDABOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
189.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
193.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
Balancing Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
1 to 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
(odd)

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
9 to 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
(odd)

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
CAMBRIDGE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
192.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
2



T
his page is intentionally left blank



IL

IL

P

P

P

P

RS

RS

RS

RS

Bol

ST

ST

ST

SV
SV SV
SV

MH

MH

MH

MH

MH MH

MH

MH

MH

MH
MH

MH
MH

MH

LB

Bol

Bol
Bol

Bol

Bol

Bol

Bol

Bol

Bol

Bol

184.96184.78

18
4.

68
18

4.
60

184.56
184.64

184.63

18
4.

64

18
4.

67

184.75

184.78

184.78

184.80

18
3.

84
18

3.
86

18
3.

85

18
4.

09
18

4.
12

184.30

18
4.

35
18

4.
38

184.66

18
4.

42

18
4.

25

184.12

184.13

18
4.2

6

184.37
184.40

184.43

184.59

184.74

184.62

18
4.

20

18
4.

41

184.74184.79
184.72

184.61
184.62

184.63
184.62

18
4.6

5

18
4.4

6 184.48 184.53
184.50

184.50 184.55 184.55

184.63

184.68
184.75

184.40
183.88

18
4.

12

184.23

18
4.0

8

18
4.

08

18
4.

27

18
4.

25

18
4.

42

18
4.

60

18
4.

73

18
4.

80

18
4.

57

18
4.

50

18
4.

37

18
4.

26

18
4.

14

18
4.

27

18
4.

12

18
4.

06

184.22
184.13

184.01

183.82

183.61

183.40

184.17

184.17

184.28

184.48
184.48

184.84

184.73

184.72

184.68

184.68

184.63

184.39

184.38

184.32

184.12
184.09

184.25

184.34

184.37

184.54

184.67

184.49

184.67

184.69

184.75

184.76

184.66

184.71

184.66

184.48

184.65

184.68

184.66
184.66

184.71

184.42

184.35

184.30

184.12

182.89
183.06

18
3.

05

18
2.

89

18
2.

57

18
2.

53

18
2.

32

182.14

182.78

182.48

18
2.

52

18
2.

66

18
2.

83

18
3.

01

18
3.

20

18
3.2

7

183.59

183.40

18
3.2

3

183.56

183.35
183.53

183.53

18
3.1

7
18

3.5
3

18
3.

49

18
3.

31

18
3.

21

18
2.

93

18
2.

85

18
2.

74
18

2.
59

181.31

181.17

181.17

181.16

181.25
181.42

181.66
181.80

181.93
181.96182.21

182.46182.66

182.74

182.75

182.77

182.67

182.74
182.84

183.12183.21

182.43

182.41

182.39

182.37

182.32
182.41

182.32
182.28

182.13

181.96

181.78

181.59
181.46

181.16

180.94
180.89

180.79
180.70

180.84

182.25

18
1.

53
18

1.
92

18
1.

12

18
0 

79

18
1.

28

18
1.

22
18

0 
70

18
0.

97

18
0.

69

18
0 

38

18
0.

86

18
0.

60
18

0 
13

181.33

180.93

180.58

180.10

179.78

179.41179.33

179.14
179.30

179.16
179.05

178.8017
8.

71

18
3.1

1

18
3.1

1

18
3.

18

18
2.

84

18
2.

60

182.41

181.90

181.27

180.80

179.91

179.61

178.93

178.52

177.95
177.58

177.41

177.06

176.86

176.53

176.19

176.23

176.01

175.91

176.08

176.22

176.36

176.35

176.33

176.18

176.24

176.12

176.33

17
6.5

6

17
6.9

6

17
7.

05

17
7.

28

17
7.5

6

17
7.6

5

17
7.9

7

17
8.6

0

17
8.6

7

17
8.8

0

178.99

179.13

179.59

179.60

18
0.

13

18
0.

74

182.86

182.63

178.44

178 02

178.42 177 99

17
7 

8917
8.

08

17
8.

12

17
7 

74

17
7.

92
17

7.
81

17
7 

32

17
7.

83

17
7.

45

17
6 

95

17
7.

56

17
7.

23

17
6 

67

17
7.

18

17
6.

81

17
6 

31

17
6.

81

17
6.

41

17
6 

06

17
6.

40

17
8.

57

17
8 

22

17
8.

64

17
8.

74

17
8 

46

17
8.

98

17
8.

86

17
8 

6317
9.

16

17
9.

45

17
9 

1517
9.

62

17
9.

94

17
9 

58

18
0.

00

18
0.

48

180.68

180.51

180.47

180.74

180.89

181.03

181.16

181.50

181.62

181.75

181.89

181.79

181.69

181.62

181.46

181.32

181.21

180.82

180.86

180.96

181.06

181.29

181.39

181.59

181.44

181.30

181.04

180.93

180.71

180.60

180.38

180.23

180.05

180.07

179.84

179.73

179.94

180.06

180.11

180.22

180.51

180.55

180.67

180.71

180.64

180.51

180.28

180.02

179.9217
9.8

0

179.77

179.94

179.57

179.71

179.74

179.80

180.05

180.29

180.27

180.37

180.32

180.31

180.14

180.09

179.94

179.88

179.66

179.48

179.49

179.19

179.25

179.27

179.24

179.30

179.38

179.54

179.52

179.44

179.67

179.43

178.92

178.58

178.47

17
8.3

9

17
8.3

9

17
8.4

8
17

8 2
7

17
8.4

0

17
8.6

017
8.3

117
8.5

4

17
8.5

4
17

8.4
4

17
8.6

4

17
8.8

517
8 6

217
8.6

6

17
8.9

3
17

8 6
0

17
8.8

7

17
8.9

6

17
8 7

417
8.9

4

17
9.1

6
17

8 8
1

17
9.0

5

17
9.1

317
8 9

117
9.1

8

17
9.3

4
17

9 1
1

17
9.3

7

17
9.5

3

17
9 2

617
9.4

5

17
9.6

8
17

9 4
0

17
9.6

8

17
9 6

5

17
9.8

5

183.33
183.21

183.17
182.97

182.91
182.91

182.88
182.76

182.63
182.42

182.16
181.93

181.80
181.64

181.55

181.38
181.46

181.26

184.78

184.81

184.65

184.24

183.98

183.64

183.33

183.04

182.84

182.55

182.36

182.19

182.50

182.68

182.92

183.20

183.58

183.95

184.15

184.47

184.65

184.74 184.91

185.52

186.02

186.06

186.15

185.61

185.59

185.92

185.87

185.73

185.72

185.37

185.17

185.34

185.46

185.06

184.37

184.70

18
4.

07

18
3.

86

183.65

183.50

184.22

184.18
184.65 184.56

184.82
184.87

185.28

185.54
185.70

185.43
185.23

185.32

185.40

185.66

184.10

184.10

184.44184.13
184.48

184.37

184.05

184.47

184.20

183.92

184.32
184.17

184.67

184.36184.69

184.29

184.59

184.37

184.10
184.49

184.29

183.92

184.22

183.88
183.50183.86

183.76

183.34

183.66

183.61

183.59

183.21

183.48

183.36183.22

183.45

182.92
182.96

183.31
183.32 183.37

183.59 183.39

183.44

183.59

183.55
183.77

184.02

184.18

184.31

184.61

184.73 184.98

185.16 184.87
184.90

184.84184.61
184.32

184.09

183.65

183.43

182.81

183.11

182.97

182.97

182.69

182.10

181.94

18
1.

93 18
1.6

7

184.16 18
4.2

4
18

4.
20

183.77

18
3.

63

183.71183.67

183.62

18
3.

68

183.96

184.00

183.87

183.74

183.62182.23

182.16

181 72

182.17
182.20

182.15

184.47

184.41

183.98

183.63

184.07

184.27

185.32

185.29

185.36

185.54

185.71

186.14

186.54

186.99

187.42

187.90

188.51

189.11

189.45

189.59

189.26

188.98

188.45

187.92

187.38

186.92

186.39

185.93

185.56

185.25

185.07

184.85

184.55

184.82

185.11

185.35

185.65

186.17

186.66

187.02

187.55

188.07

188.68

189.03

189.32

189.67

189.68

189.17

188.79

188.31

187.56

187.08

186.53

186.09

185.48

185.01

184.76

184.45

184.30

183.74

183.97

184.42

184.84

185.15

185.68

186.13

186.62

187.21

187.60

188.17

188.66

189.01

189.48

189.80

189.62

189.35

188.92

188.45

187.84

187.30

187.00

186.49

185.81

185.32

184.97

184.26

183.87

183.58

183.39

183.03

183.15

183.54

183.98

184.37

184.78

185.24

185.74

186.31

186.83

187.31

187.73

188.31

188.84

189.16

189.52

190.12

190.55

190.60

190.09

188.88

188.52

187.92

187.27

186.79

186.26

184.13

183.71

183.30

182.91

182.56

182.38

182.20

182.35

182.82

183.80

185.39

185.93

186.49

187.06

187.79

190.13

190.84

190.94

190.20

182.74

182.42

182.05

181.87

181.52

181.54

181.88

182.01

182.26

182.58

185.42

185.91

191.03

190.47

185.92

183.83

183.38

182.98

182.54

182.27

182.10

181.92

181.65

190.38

191.11

191.14

190.83

186.64

186.06

184.99

184.49

184.10

183.74

183.30

182.90

182.64

182.48

182.31

182.00

182.06

182.25

182.46

182.76

183.13

183.45

183.91

184.36

184.77

185.23

186.13

190.88

191.22

191.22

186.58

185.93

185.01

184.60

184.31

183.82

183.50

183.20

182.97

182.75

182.61

182.37

182.21

182.56

182.71

182.78

183.03

183.29

183.60

183.92

184.35

184.71

185.16

185.60

186.03

186.58

191.07

190.95

186.97

186.47

185.91

185.40

184.91

184.48

184.03

183.59

183.33

183.08

182.87

182.88

182.70

182.89

183.12

183.19

183.45

183.68

184.20

184.54

184.98

185.41

185.96

186.55

187.18

188.65

188.86

189.46

189.98

190.34

190.65

190.39

190.21

189.83

189.37

188.82

188.24

185.77

185.03

184.61

184.30

183.99

183.76

183.53

183.35

183.13

182.99
183.06

183.33

183.48

183.69

184.01

184.30

184.67

185.07

185.51

185.88

186.20

188.03

188.40

189.02

189.62

189.89

189.93

189.46

189.29

188.87

188.36

187.96

187.63

187.42

186.00

185.81

185.36

184.96

184.55

184.18

183.88

183.56

183.38

183.31

183.28

183.29

183.58

183.65

183.80

184.02

184.34

184.66

184.89

185.14

185.44

185.70

186.06

186.87

187.16

187.43

187.55

188.05

188.47

188.92

189.21

188.59

188.13

188.23

188.46

188.08

187.93

187.57

187.21
187.36

187.51

187.67

187.35

187.14

186.79

186.60

186.19

186.41

186.74

186.97

186.86

186.66

186.38

186.12

185.83

186.05

186.37

186.61

186.24

186.06

185.73

185.47

185.20

185.43

185.31

185.03

185.00

185.28

184.98

184.86

184.87

184.38

184.43

184.55

184.13

184.18

183.95

184.03

184.08

183.89

183.78

18
4.

7718
4.

63

18
4.

81

18
4.

84

18
5.

24

18
5.

15

18
5.

29

18
5.

46

18
5.

45

18
5.

62

18
5.

41

18
5.

88

18
6.

15

18
6.

55

18
6.

77

18
7.

37

18
7.

85

18
8.

38

18
9.

07

18
9.

42

189.74

189.71

189.80

189.92

189.82

19
0.2

6

190.71
190.73

190.90

191.15

191.24

191.34

191.40

191.45

191.28

191.16

190.91

190.73

190.63

190.45

190.13

189.77

189.38

188.60

188.45

188.19

187.97

187.54

18
7.

19

18
6.

68

18
6.

22

18
5.

83

18
5.

36

18
5.

14

18
4.

91

18
4.

52

18
4.

11

18
4.

06

18
3.8

1

18
3.5

3

184.38

188.79

188.13

187.65

187.21

186.93

17
6.

39

176.48

176.49

17
6.4

8

17
6.6

1

17
6.5

5

17
6.

65

17
6.

73

17
6.

8417
6.

77

17
6.

80

17
6.

81

17
6.

9917
7.

02

17
7.

13

17
7.

17

17
7.

3117
7.

26

17
7.

49

17
7.

49

17
7.

6117
7.

62

17
7.

83

17
7.

81

17
7.

99

17
7.

96

17
8.

23

17
8.

28

17
8.

38

17
8.

36

178.47

178.40
178.38

178.26
178.18

178.19

177.94

177.96

177.87

177.84

177.61
177.51

177.33

177.30

177.08
177.13

176.94

176.89

176.81 176.87

176.57

176.51

176.56

176.15

176.15

176.35

176.40

176.35

176.41

176.45

176.56

176.56

176.32

176.42

176.36

176.36

176.45

176.44

176.58

176.82

176.86

176.95

176.90

176.67

176.56

176.43

176.30

176.60

176.69

176.73

176.78

176.90

177.09

177.05

177.16

177.23

176.84

176.65

176.67

176.88

176.83

176.98

177.12

177.42

177.49

177.65

177.43

177.24

177.12

177.00

177.04

177.18

177.20

177.43

177.56

177.64

177.77

177.83

177.61

177.39

177.16

177.12

177.01

177.09

177.19

177.28

177.30

177.56

177.78

177.94

177.94

177.75

177.59

177.50

177.49

177.42

177.69

177.70

177.78

177.79

177.98

178.08

178.00

177.79

177.60

177.36

177.33

177.55

177.62

177.73

177.94

178.11

178.22

178.19

177.92

177.91

177.96

177.91

178.05

178.32

178.22

178.08

178.19

178.32

178.40

178.41

178.32

178.02

177.76

177.79

177.67

177.80

177.91

178.07

178.39

178.59

178.55

178.66

178.67

178.66

178.90

178.94

179.01

178.93

178.85

178.52

178.17

178.03

178.26

178.36

178.67

179.09

179.41
179.17

179.02

179.23

179.21

179.12

17
8.

76

178.57 178.44

178.43
178.41

178.43

178.46

17
8.

59

178.57

178.63

17
8.

77

17
8.8

8

179.01

178.32

178.35

178.49

178.73

178.63178.70

178.84

178.78

178.89

179.30

179.11

179.00

178.55

178.40

178.53

178.70

178.74

178.71

17
8.

38

17
8.

70

17
8 

25

17
8 

10

178.64

178.97

179.01

179.13

179.56

180.15

180.52

181.00

181.56

182.17

182.71

182.91

183.10

183.15

182.56

182.16

181.53

180.78

180.24

179.65

179.17

179.00

178.86

178.69

178.44

178.11

178.31

178.61

178.89

179.06

179.57

180.28

180.83

181.51

182.01

182.25

181.80

180.95

180.45

179.63

179.24

178.84

178.52

178.19

177.94

177.79

177.62

177.75

177.96

178.26

178.58

179.10

179.48

179.75

180.12

180.44

180.47

180.71

180.93

179.95

179.53

178.99

178.54

178.05

177.73

177.48

177.35

177.28

177.05

177.09

177.31

177.63

177.99

178.31

178.90

179.29

178.93

178.42

177.91

177.50

177.21

177.02

176.86

176.70

176.51

176.56

176.84

176.95

177.34 177.69
178.09

178.45

178.51

178.46

178.57

178.57

178.80

178 85

178.18

178.25
178.19

178.64

178.37

178.19

178.45

178.46

17
8.

43

178.70

178.02

178.32

17
8.3

8

178.34

178.29

178.20177.63

177.6917
7.

91

17
8.

04
17

8.
04

17
7.

87

17
7 6

317
7.8

9

17
7.7

3
17

7 5
4

17
7.8

6

17
7.8

3

177.66
177.50

177.28

177.17

177.11

177.03
176.89

176.75

17
6.

17176.72

176.77

176.65

176.75

176.96

177.08

177.12

177.10

177.15

177.32

177.55
177.71 177.90

177.89

177.71177.50

177.28

177.15

177.13

176.99

176.75

176.25

176.46

176.57

176.76

176.83

176.67

176.78

176.73

176.29

175.72

175.72

175.79

175.98

175.50

176.10

176.19
175.72

175.84

176.04175.78

176.00

175.83

176.28

176.35

175.95

176.25

175.96

176.35

176.45
175.94

176.25

175.95

176.58

176.63
176.06

175.94

176.48

176.52
176.15

176.10

176.53

176.49

17
6.

44

176.38

176.21

176.25 176.55

17
6.6

1

17
6.

62

176.55

17
6.

42

17
6.

51
17

6.
44

176.45

176.31

17
6.

20

176.38

176.39

176.35
176.16

176.09

175.60

176.03 176.02
176.05

176.05

176.21
176.20

175.95

17
6.

04

176.14

176.31

176.26

176.09 175.67

17
5.

70

175.86

176.00

175.98

175.96

175.99176.03
175.37

175.20

175.15

175.26

17
5.3

6

17
6.

44

176.57
176.53

176.37
176.19

176.36

176.38

176.31

17
6.3

7

176.34

17
6.3

6

176.34

176.31

175.21

175.20

17
5.1

9

175.19

17
5.1

7

175.25

175.41

176.25

176.37

175.87

175.78

175.66

175.97

175.40

176.21

176.21

176.44

176.56

176.63

176.69

176.68

176.60

176.62

176.62

176.63

176.65

176.68

176.69

176.64

176.59

176.55

176.58

176.52

176.34

176.49

176.44

176.51

176.64

176.61

176.72

176.60

176.54

176.53

176.52

176.45

176.33

176.32

176.43

176.40

176.21

176.19

176.20

176.33

176.38

176.43

176.48

176.54
176.28

176.27

176.20

176.14

176.09 175.79

176.24

18
2.

62
18

2.
34

18
2.

09
18

1.
79

18
1.

49
18

1.
19

18
0.

94
18

0.
76

18
0.

52
18

0.
30

179.97

179.82

179.66

179.40

179.16

178.92

178.67

178.35

178.08

177.93

177.75

177.61

177.53

177.39

177.29

177.16

177.01

176.96

176.81

176.72

176.60

176.51

176.42

176.43

176.41

175.99

176.21

176.28
176.30

176.34

176.34

176.41

17
6.

42

17
6.4

0

176.47

176.44

176.45

17
6.

20

175.64

175.71

175.90

176.36

176.61

176.36
176.72

176.81

17
6.

64

17
6.0

5

175.83 176.75

176.87

176.93

176.33
175.74

175.87
176.24

176.83
177.53

177.81

17
7.

90

17
7.

86

177.85

177.54

178.06

177.95 178.03 178.14
178.43

17
8.

16

17
8.

13
17

8.
04

17
8.

02

17
7.

96

17
8.

03

17
8.

14
17

7 
81

17
7 

82

17
7 

84

177.99

178.00

178.10

177.82

177.83

177.60

177.55

177.31

177.42

177.20

177.13

176.90

177.01

176.73

176.71

176.75

176.72

176.65

176.67

176.51

176.55

176.44

176.33

176.29

176.41

176.35

176.20

176.48

176.61

176.67

176.70
176.69

176.52

176.54

176.63 176.64

176.80

176.93

177.08

177.09

177.18

177.38

177.64

177.85

177.27

177.33

185.62

185.22

184.93

184.86

179.31
179.39

179.50
179.82

179.93

180.12

180.09

180.24

180.20

180.07

179.97

179.88

179.50

179.24

179.05

178.84

178.88

179.03

179.42

179.64

179.60

179.69

179.65

179.49

179.31

179.18

179.21

179.09

179.04

180.04

180.13

180.30

180.48

180.58

180.72

180.80

181.00

181.04

181.13

181.03

180.93

180.62

180.37

180.24

180.08

180.13

180.32

180.40

180.49

180.73

181.06

181.19

181.40

181.68

181.59

181.54

181.40

181.26

181.08

180.84

18
1.

81

18
2.

24

18
2.

75

18
3.2

9

182.07

182.25

182.25

182.26

182.28

182.26

182.25182.25

182.25 182.11
181.94

181.65
181.46

181.38
181.09

180.89

182.22

182.57

182.86

183.21

183.49

184.03

184.65

185.22

186.36

191.00190.88

187.03

179.52

179.69

179.83

179.89

179.84

178.77

179.22

182.03

181.97

181.88

181.88

181.79

181.77

181.46

190.66

189.84

183.17

183.53

184.11

18
1.

49

18
6.

80

18
7.

0518
7.

01

18
7.

2018
7.

14

18
7.

3918
7.

25

18
7.

5918
7.

43

18
7.

78

18
7.

62

18
7.

9418
7.

75

18
8.

2018
8.

10

18
8.

42

18
8.

39

18
8.

59

18
8.

78

18
9.

02

18
9.

09

18
9.

19

18
9.3

4

18
9.4

2

189.62

189.73

189.83

190.28

19
0.0

7

18
9.9

0

18
9.

64

18
9.

36

18
8.

91

18
8.

68

188.56

188.82188.82

189.47

189.67

190.06

189.85

189.66

190.23

190.22

190.28

190.34

190.37

190.36

190.40

189.92189.99

190.04

190.13

190.20

190.28

190.33

190.39

190.47

190.58

190.66

190.71

190.75

190.75

190.78

190.83

190.89

190.88

190.86

190.85

190.83

190.83

190.82

190.78

190.75

190.69

190.60

190.50

190.31

190.99

191.05

191.14
191.15

191.26

191.34

191.47

191.61

191.75

191.64

191.46

191.29
190.86

191.26
191.21

191.13

190.96
190.95

190.95

190.91

190.85

190.90

190.82

190.75

190.34 190.33

189.92

190.04

190.21

190.28

190.32

190.46

190.83

190.92

190.92

190.89

190.90

190.87

190.83

190.83

190.48

190.27
190.14

190.84

190.78

190.55

190.30

190.33

190.64

190.97

190.78

190.93

190.91

190.75

190.42

190.22

190.32

190.70

191.08

191.01

191.04

190.84

190.02

189.64

189.42

189.26

189.07

188.96

188.78

188.62

188.52

188.47

188.38

188.24

188.19

188.15

188.30

188.42

188.61

188.81

188.96

189.39

189.69

189.86

190.25

190.73

190.83

190.96190.83

190.67

190.44

190.36

190.06

189.82

189.65

189.56

188.03

18
7.

92
18

7.
78

18
7.

40

18
7.

17
18

7.
08

18
6.

86
18

6.
64

18
6.

53

18
6.

45

18
6.

23

18
6.

12

18
5.

90

18
5.

75

18
5.

46

18
5.

16

18
5.

02

18
4.

75

18
4.

34
18

4.
23

18
3.

92

183.55

18
3.

19

18
3.

33

18
3.

13

18
2.

80

18
2.

50

18
2.

11

18
1.

88

18
1.7

1

18
1.4

4

18
1.2

3

18
0.9

9

18
0.

73

18
0.

58

18
0.

38

18
0.

15
18

0.
06

17
9.

86

179.74
179.69

17
9.7

3

17
9.

55

179.04

18
3.4

5

18
3.2

2
178.74

178.55

17
8.2

5

17
8.

01

17
7.

83

17
7.4

2

17
6.

80

17
6.5

8

17
6.

38

17
6.

14
17

6.
07

17
5.7

9

17
5.5

8

17
5.3

6

17
5.

16

17
5.0

2

174.87

17
4.

69

17
4.

74

17
4.5

9

17
4.

44

17
4.

23

17
4.

05

17
3.

79

173.64
173.71

17
3.6

4

17
3.

52
17

3.
41

17
3.1

9

17
2.

99

17
2.

85

172.67

17
2.

52

17
2.1

8

17
2.

15
17

2.
10

17
1.

98

171.95
171.93

17
1.

85

17
1.

74

17
1.

60

171.46

173.10

174.68
175.77

176.59
176.20

177.39

177.39

177.37

177.24176.86

176.55

176.53

176.51

176.24

176.38

176.57
176.54

176.44

176.34

176.58

176.69

176.75

176.74

176.71

176.84

176.85

177.13

176.41

176.42

176.43

176.48

176.51

176.51

176.50
176.52

176.57

176.69

176.76

176.85

176.91

176.95

176.99

177.07

177.17

177.29

177.40

177.41

177.39

17
6.

20

176.34

176.39

176.03

176.00

17
6.

17

176.46

176.49

176.34

176.02
176.33

175.89

175.77

175.78

18
3.

12

18
3.

42

18
3.

68

18
3.

85

18
4.

26

18
4.

41

18
4.

58

18
4.

76

18
4.8

7

184.94

184.88

184.83

184.87

184.80 184.87

184.88

184.86

184.87

18
4.8

4

18
4.

72

184.45

18
4.3

4

18
4.

20
18

4.
06

184.15

184.07

18
3.

87

18
3.

62

18
3.

18
18

2.
98

18
2.

74

184.96

18
4.

94

184.93

184.80
184.92

184.92
184.95

184.99

185.07

185.23

185.33
185.35

185.45
185.49

18
5.

56

18
5.

67

18
5.

76

18
5.

89

18
6.

01

18
6.

16

18
6.

34

18
6.

49

18
6.

63

18
6.

78

18
7.

11

184.73

184.84

184.72

176.66

176.55

176.65

176.66

176.48

176.46

176.39

176.17

190.52

190.43

190.29

18
2.

51182.19

181.97

181.82

181.23

181.61

181.77
181.82

18
2.

07
18

1.
69181.43

181.09

180.74
180.33

180.03
180.13

180.39 180.73 180.99

18
1.

06

180.67

180.44180.17
179.77

179.51

180.39

18
0.

74180.21180.04

179.52

179.09

179.15

179.40

179.65
179.94 180.18

18
0.

25

185.21

185.17

185.04

184.88

184.78

184.55

184.39

184.68

184.79

184.97

185.34

185.31

185.26

185.15

184.99

18
4.

80

184.87

184.59

184.15

184.36

184.46

184.57

184.93

185.23

18
5.

62

185.53
185.32

184.79

184.47

185.02

185.43

185.83

18
6.

49

186.32

186.26

185.88

185.48

185.26

185.04

185.26

185.70

185.90

186.25

186.43

18
6.

57

186.57

186.39

186.16

186.19
186.11

185.70

185.96

186.28

186.37

186.69

186.82

186.87
186.80

186.45

186.30
186.16

186.86

187.07

187.17

18
7.

70

187.33

187.06

186.88

18
7.

10

187.38

187.43

187.78

188.07

18
8.

55

188.46

188.23

188.14

187.91

187.90

187.86

188.73

189.03

189.15

189.22

189.40

189.31

189.47

189.31

189.22

189.23

184.24

18
4.

8218
3 8

6

18
4 

05

18
4.

32

18
4.

3518
4 

07

18
4 

17

18
4.

52

18
4 

30
18

4.
63

18
4.

7518
4 

4518
5.

11

18
5.

15
18

4 
70

18
4.

97

18
5.

17

18
5 

13

18
5.

24
18

4.
84

18
4 8

1

18
4 

93
18

5.
30

18
5.

4518
5 

22

18
5.

87
18

5 
32

18
5.

61

18
5.

7318
5 

3718
6.

00

18
6.

14

18
5 

49
18

5.
83

18
6.

1118
5 

7018
6.

41

18
6.

3418
5 

9518
6.

62

18
6.

81

18
6 

4518
7.

07

18
6 

75

18
7.

77

18
7 

38

18
8.

04

18
8.

23

18
7 

8418
8.

49

18
9.

0818
8 

66

18
9.

31

189 22

18
9.6

2

189.76

189.76

18
9 

8019
0.

16

189.68

189.63

189.60

190.03

190.02

190.02

190.51

190.43

190.44

190.69

190.87

190.94

190.97

190.87

190.77

191.05

191.19

190.97

191.17

191.27

191.27

191.41

191.44

191.51
191.69

191.67

191.73

191.77

186.67
186.33

186.28

186.16

186.05

185.76

185.67

185.47

185.16

18
2.

24

18
2.1

2

18
1.9

0

18
1.6

7

18
1.5

4

18
1.5

6
18

1.6
3

18
1.3

2

18
1.2

1

18
1.

33

18
1.

60

18
1.

89

18
3.4

3
18

2.2
6

181.40

18
1.6

7

18
0.6

5

18
0.6

2

17
9.9

8

18
0.0

0

17
9.6

4

17
9.3

0

17
9.3

7
17

9.1
7

17
9.0

4

17
8.

79

17
8.8

1

17
8.4

2

17
8.

47

179.55

179.24

178.99

178.69

178.42

178.15

178.11

178.32

178.59

178.80

179.29
179.32

179.56

179.77

180.14

179.80

179.47

179.17

178.84

178.48

178.14

178.19

178.51

178.67 179.20

179.50

179.87

180.05

179 06

179.27

181.19

180.86

181.36

180.02

179.63

180.13

179.32

D
itc

h 
Bl

oc
ke

d 
O

ff

.300m dia

300mm dia

G

C O L L I E R S  W A Y

C O
 L L I E R S  W

 A Y

C O L L I E R S  W A Y

RS

RS

RS

Site Office

MH
cl: 176.91

MH
cl: 184.75

MH
cl: 182.75

RS

MH
cl: 189.97

RS

W
O

WO

Unable to Survey
due to dense vegetation

Pond

Pond

Pond

Unable to Survey
due to dense vegetation

Unable to Survey
due to dense vegetation

Unable to Survey
due to dense vegetation

Unable to Survey
due to dense vegetation

Unable to Survey
due to dense vegetation

Foilage

Fo
ila

ge

Foilage

Foilage

Foilage

Foilage

Foilage

Line of Posts

Line of Posts

P/W Fence

P/W Fence

P/
W

 F
en

ce

P/W Fence

RS

P/W
 Fence

P/
W

 F
en

ce

B/
W

 F
en

ce

B/
W

 F
en

ce

B/
W

 F
en

ce

B/
W

 F
en

ce

B/
W

 F
en

ce

B/W Fence

B/W Fence

B/
W

 F
en

ce

B/
W

 F
en

ce

P/
W

 F
en

ce

RS

P/
W

 F
en

ce

Ditc
h

Ditc
h

Ditch

Ditch

Ditch

D
itc

h

D
itc

h

Ditch

D
itc

h

D
itc

h

Ditch

Ditch

Ditch

Ditch

Di
tch

Di
tch

Di
tch

Di
tc

h

Di
tch

Ditch

D
itc

h

D
itch

D
itch

Ditc
h

B/W Fence

Edge of Footpath

Edge of Footpath

Edge of F
ootpath

Ed
ge

 o
f F

oo
tp

at
h

Ed
ge

 o
f F

oo
tp

at
h

Di
tc

h

Concrete Ring

Overbridge

Edge of Footpath

Edge of Footpath

Bench

Bench

Unable to Survey
due to dense vegetation

CE 184.52CE 184.50CE 184.59CE 184.59

CE 184.71

CE 184.92

C
E 

18
4.

94
C

E 
18

4.
52

C
E 184.36

CE 184.37

CE 184.33CE 184.36

CE 184.40

C
E 

18
4.

59

C
E 

18
4.

79

CE 185.04CE 185.17

CE 185.25
CE 185.36

CE 185.39

C
E 

18
5.

05
C

E 
18

5.
14

C
E 

18
5.

08

C
E 

18
5.

12

CE 185.36
CE 185.48

CE 185.62

CE 185.68
CE 185.80

CE 186.06
CE 186.19CE 186.32CE 186.49

C
E 

18
6.

11

C
E 

18
5.

73

CE 185.75

CE 185.80
CE 185.81CE 185.81CE 185.81

C
E 

18
5.

86

C
E 

18
6.

22

C
E 

18
6.

46

CE 186.48

CE 186.60
CE 186.61 CE 186.65

CE 186.63 CE 186.48 CE 186.36

CE 186.21 CE 185.92
CE 185.85 CE 185.68 CE 185.58

CE 185.41 CE 185.31 CE 185.23 CE 185.16
CE 185.08

CE 184.98
CE 184.77 CE 184.62

CE 184.62
CE 184.53

CE 184.56

CE 186.68

CE 186.71 CE 186.78
CE 186.77

CE 186.78 CE 186.61 CE 186.42

CE 186.30 CE 186.06
CE 185.95 CE 185.78

CE 185.72

CE 185.56 CE 185.45 CE 185.33 CE 185.21

CE 185.15 CE 185.05
CE 184.89 CE 184.75

CE 184.74
CE 184.72

CE 184.71

C
E 

18
4.

53

C
E 184.45

CE 184.31

CE 184.24

CE 184.26

CE 184.49

CE 184.52

C
E 

18
4.

14

C
E 

18
3.

89

C
E 

18
3.

53

C
E 

18
3.

22

CE 183.19
CE 182.98

CE 183.07

C
E 

18
2.

99
C

E 
18

2.
87

C
E 

18
2.

94

C
E 

18
2.

99

CE 183.08

CE 183.06
CE 183.02 CE 18

2.9
9

CE 18
2.9

5

CE 182.96

CE 182.87

CE 182.80

CE 182.80

CE 182.83

CE 18
2.9

7

CE 18
3.0

2

C
E 

18
3.

06

C
E 

18
3.

24
C

E 
18

3.
37

C
E 

18
3.

64

C
E 

18
3.

96

CE 184.38

CE
 1

84
.5

2

C
E 184.59

CE 184.70
CE 184.51

CE 18
4.6

1

CE
 1

84
.4

7

C
E 

18
4.

12

CE 183.90 CE 183.99

CE 184.04

C
E 

18
4.

07

C
E 

18
4.

58

C
E 

18
4.

91

C
E 

18
5.

27

C
E 

18
5.

74

CE 186.10

CE 185.98

C
E 

18
5.

95
C

E 
18

5.
64

C
E 185.44

CE 185.16

CE 185.02

CE 185.04CE 184.96CE 184.94
CE 184.93

CE 184.97
CE 185.13

CE 185.32

CE 185.43CE 185.45

CE 185.64
CE 185.64

CE 185.76CE 185.81
CE 185.89

CE 185.91
CE 186.24

CE 186.52
CE 186.58CE 186.73

CE 186.88CE 187.03
CE 187.11

CE 187.03
CE 187.02

CE
 1

87
.1

5

C
E 187.22

CE 187.19
CE 187.14

C
E 187.18

C
E 187.33

C
E 

18
7.

48
C

E 
18

7.
61

C
E 

18
7.

72
C

E 
18

7.
86

C
E 

18
7.

97
C

E 
18

8.
01

CE 188.04CE 188.04

CE 187.95

CE 187.80

CE 187.71
CE 187.64

CE 187.61
C

E 187.59
C

E 187.39

C
E 

18
7.

28

C
E 187.26

C
E 187.16

C
E 

18
7.

06

CE 186.98
CE 187.16

CE 187.13

CE 187.05 CE 187.02

CE 18
7.2

5
C

E 
18

7.
16

C
E 187.07

CE 187.03CE 187.04CE 186.97CE 186.90

CE 186.84

CE 186.80

CE 186.70

CE 186.60

CE 186.44

CE 186.18

CE 185.99

CE 185.84

C
E 185.65

C
E 185.57

C
E 

18
5.

45
C

E 
18

5.
20

C
E 

18
4.

98

C
E 

18
4.

77

CE
 1

84
.5

0

CE
 1

84
.3

2

CE
 1

84
.1

3

C
E 

18
4.

10

CE 184.16

C
E 

18
4.

05

C
E 184.00

CE 183.97

CE 183.97 CE 183.96

CE 183.89

CE 18
3.8

8

CE
 1

84
.0

8

CE
 1

83
.9

8

CE
 1

84
.0

7

CE
 1

84
.0

9

CE
 1

84
.2

9

C
E 

18
4.

49

C
E 

18
4.

78

C
E 

18
5.

08

C
E 185.30

C
E 185.42

C
E 185.54

CE 185.63

CE 185.81

CE 186.05

CE 186.16

CE 186.28

CE 186.35

CE 186.54

CE 186.68
CE 186.68 CE 186.75 CE 186.74

Bo
B 

18
4.0

1

BoB 184.05

BoB 184.01
BoB 184.06

BoB 184.44

Bo
B 

18
4.

65

Bo
B 

18
4.

98
Bo

B 
18

5.
34

Bo
B 

18
5.

73
Bo

B 
18

5.
96

BoB 186.04

Bo
B 

18
6.

16

BoB 186.20

BoB 186.09

BoB 185.30
BoB 185.33

Bo
B 

18
5.

37

Bo
B 

18
5.

44

BoB 185.46

BoB 184.45BoB 184.50

BoB 184.63

BoB 184.62

BoB 184.67

BoB 184.64

BoB 184.65

BoB
 18

4.5
8

Bo
B 

18
4.

49

Bo
B 

18
3.

30
Bo

B 
18

3.
20

BoB 183.10 BoB 183.15

BoB 183.20

Bo
B 

18
3.

21

Bo
B 

18
3.

55

Bo
B 

18
3.

95

BoB 184.67BoB 184.68

BoB 184.70

BoB 184.65

Bo
B 

18
4.

87

Bo
B 

18
4.

51
Bo

B 
18

4.
13

Bo
B 

18
3.

96

Bo
B 

18
3.

94

BoB
 18

3.6
1

BoB
 18

3.6
1

Bo
B 

18
3.

52
Bo

B 
18

3.
35

BoB 183.35

BoB 183.34
BoB 183.26

BoB 183.14

BoB 182.93
BoB 182.90

BoB 182.95

BoB 183.03

BoB 182.97

Bo
B 

18
2.

97

BoB 182.95

BoB 182.95BoB 183.18

BoB 184.44

BoB 184.30

BoB 184.27

BoB 184.26

Bo
B 

18
4.

39
Bo

B 
18

4.
62

BoB 184.77

BoB 184.74
BoB 184.67

BoB
 18

4.7
2

Bo
B 

18
6.

16

Bo
B 

18
5.

87

BoB 185.79

Bo
B 

18
5.

87
Bo

B 
18

6.
15

Bo
B 

18
6.

41

BoB 185.75
BoB 185.78

BoB 185.78

BoB 185.72

BoB 185.72BoB 185.77

BoB 185.79BoB 185.86BoB 185.85

Bo
B 

18
5.

87

BoB 185.94

BoB 185.90
BoB 185.89

Bo
B 

18
6.

49
Bo

B 
18

6.
32

Bo
B 

18
6.

03
Bo

B 
18

5.
92

BoB 185.92

Bo
B 

18
5.

93

Bo
B 

18
6.

02

Bo
B 

18
6.

18

Bo
B 

18
6.

29

Bo
B 

18
6.

34

Bo
B 

18
6.

43

BoB 186.53
BoB 186.61

BoB 185.39

BoB 185.45
BoB 185.27BoB 185.23BoB 185.40

BoB 185.36
BoB 185.49

BoB 185.64BoB 185.79

BoB 185.83BoB 185.93
BoB 185.98

BoB 186.07

BoB 186.18

BoB 186.28
BoB 186.44

BoB 186.57
BoB 186.70BoB 186.82

BoB 187.06

BoB 187.29

BoB 187.29

Bo
B 

18
7.

34

Bo
B 

18
7.

43

BoB 187.52

Bo
B 

18
7.

81
Bo

B 
18

7.
90

Bo
B 

18
8.

00
Bo

B 
18

8.
17

BoB 188.28Bo
B 

18
8.

26
Bo

B 
18

8.
17

Bo
B 

18
8.

02
Bo

B 
18

7.
84

Bo
B 

18
7.

69
Bo

B 
18

7.
47

BoB 188.21

BoB 188.15

BoB 188.01
BoB 187.93

BoB 187.90

BoB 187.78

BoB 187.80

BoB 187.61

Bo
B 

18
7.

62

Bo
B 

18
7.

43

Bo
B 

18
7.

44

BoB 187.39

BoB 187.33

Bo
B 

18
7.

22
Bo

B 
18

7.
11

Bo
B 

18
7.

17
Bo

B 
18

7.
04

Bo
B 

18
7.

00

BoB 186.93
BoB 186.87

BoB 186.87
BoB 186.89

BoB 187.02

BoB 186.98

BoB 186.76

BoB 186.58

BoB 186.49

BoB 186.33

BoB 185.94

BoB 185.67

BoB 185.44

BoB 185.40

Bo
B 

18
5.

34
Bo

B 
18

5.
25

Bo
B 

18
5.

00

Bo
B 

18
4.

76

Bo
B 

18
4.

44

Bo
B 

18
4.

26

Bo
B 

18
4.

01

To
B1

86
.4

4
To

B1
86

.2
8

To
B1

85
.9

8

To
B1

85
.5

6

To
B1

85
.4

8
To

B1
84

.9
8

To
B1

84
.6

1

To
B1

84
.6

0
To

B1
85

.0
0

To
B1

85
.5

0

To
B1

85
.6

0

To
B1

85
.9

4

To
B1

86
.1

8

To
B1

86
.3

7

To
B1

85
.7

7
To

B1
85

.6
7

To
B1

85
.6

7

To
B1

85
.6

9

ToB184.92
ToB184.96

ToB185.41

ToB185.13

To
B1

84
.5

1

To
B1

84
.0

4

To
B1

83
.8

1

To
B1

83
.8

2

To
B1

83
.9

7

To
B1

84
.4

5
To

B1
84

.8
3

To
B1

85
.0

1

ToB
18

4.7
4

ToB185.30

ToB185.12

To
B1

85
.3

6
To

B1
85

.5
3

ToB185.51

ToB185.48

To
B1

85
.2

4

To
B1

85
.2

6
To

B1
84

.9
2

To
B1

84
.6

3

To
B1

84
.6

7

To
B1

84
.3

0

To
B1

84
.0

0
To

B1
84

.0
7

ToB183.70
ToB183.59

ToB183.70

ToB183.73 ToB183.66
ToB183.79

ToB183.69

ToB183.63

ToB183.62

ToB183.48
ToB183.64

ToB183.70

ToB183.54
ToB183.62

To
B18

5.3
6

ToB185.58ToB185.61

ToB185.56
ToB185.29

To
B1

85
.2

4

ToB185.03

To
B1

84
.9

5 ToB184.92
ToB184.92

ToB185.13

To
B1

85
.1

4
To

B1
85

.2
7

To
B1

86
.9

7
To

B1
86

.9
8

To
B1

86
.8

1
To

B1
86

.6
0

To
B1

86
.5

3

ToB186.31

ToB186.37
ToB186.58ToB186.57

ToB186.47
ToB186.34

ToB186.26

To
B1

86
.6

0
To

B1
86

.6
9

To
B1

86
.9

6

To
B1

87
.2

3

To
B1

87
.0

5
To

B1
87

.4
3

To
B1

87
.3

7

To
B1

88
.8

0
To

B1
88

.6
9

To
B1

88
.4

9

To
B1

88
.2

7
To

B1
88

.1
5

ToB187.90

ToB188.10

ToB187.66

ToB187.82

ToB187.76
ToB187.57 ToB187.73

ToB187.70 ToB187.42
ToB187.36 ToB187.06

ToB187.02

ToB186.87

ToB186.74 ToB186.46

ToB186.65 ToB186.69
ToB186.60 ToB186.46

ToB186.24 ToB186.20

ToB186.08
ToB185.91

ToB185.84
ToB185.85

ToB185.83
ToB185.93 ToB185.91

ToB185.86

ToB185.91
ToB185.88ToB185.94

ToB185.92
ToB185.89

ToB186.15

ToB186.14ToB186.32
ToB186.43ToB186.68

ToB186.78

ToB186.55

ToB186.53

ToB186.73
ToB186.89

ToB187.13
ToB187.10

ToB187.40
ToB187.35

ToB187.66ToB187.77

To
B1

87
.8

8
To

B1
88

.0
5

To
B1

87
.5

0

To
B1

87
.7

4

To
B1

87
.7

5

ToB187.71

ToB187.92
ToB187.91

To
B1

88
.0

7

To
B1

88
.1

5

ToB188.16

ToB188.31
ToB188.51

ToB188.47
ToB188.50

ToB188.56

ToB188.56

ToB188.56
ToB188.44

ToB188.60

ToB188.38

ToB188.28

ToB188.25

ToB188.30

To
B1

88
.0

7

To
B1

88
.0

1

ToB187.94

ToB187.79

To
B1

87
.8

4
To

B1
87

.81

To
B1

87
.6

0

To
B1

84
.7

2

To
B1

84
.7

2

To
B1

84
.8

9

To
B1

84
.9

0

To
B1

85
.2

1

To
B1

85
.5

1

To
B1

85
.8

2

ToB185.98
ToB186.08

ToB186.25

ToB186.44

ToB186.60

ToB186.79

ToB187.10

ToB187.17

ToB187.29

ToB187.41

ToB187.40 ToB187.64 ToB187.71 ToB187.85

ToB187.90ToB187.75

ToB187.71
ToB187.49

ToB187.35

ToB187.24

ToB187.10

ToB187.05

ToB186.86

ToB186.63

ToB186.48

ToB186.27

ToB186.16

To
B1

85
.9

4
To

B1
85

.7
5

To
B1

85
.5

2

To
B1

85
.2

0

To
B1

84
.9

5

To
B1

84
.9

5

To
B1

84
.8

4

To
B1

84
.7

5

Ve
rg

e 
18

6.
49

Ve
rg

e 
18

6.
28

Ve
rg

e 
18

6.
05

Verge 185.95 Verge 185.91 Verge 185.93

Ve
rg

e 
18

5.
86

Ve
rg

e 
18

6.
20

Verge 186.54 Verge 186.41 Verge 186.27
Verge 186.22 Verge 186.01

Verge 185.78
Verge 185.85

Verge 185.62 Verge 185.47

Ve
rg

e 
18

5.
45

Ve
rg

e 
18

5.
44

Ve
rg

e 
18

5.
37 Verge 185.32

Ve
rg

e 
18

5.
41

Ve
rg

e 
18

5.
44

Verge 185.48
Verge 185.62

Verge 185.45

Verge 185.24

Verg
e 1

85
.24

Ve
rg

e 
18

4.
88

Ve
rg

e 
18

4.
67

Verge 184.53

Verge 184.47

Verge 184.48 Verge 184.46 Verge 184.45

Ve
rg

e 
18

4.
75

Ve
rg

e 
18

5.
01

Verge 185.04
Verge 184.91 Verge 184.83 Verge 184.80 Verge 184.76 Verge 184.75

Verge 184.51

Verge 184.62

Verge 183.29

Ve
rg

e 
18

3.
13

Ve
rg

e 
18

7.
75

Ve
rg

e 
18

7.
83

Ve
rg

e 
18

8.
00

Ve
rg

e 
18

8.
11

Ve
rg

e 
18

8.
27

Verge 188.34Verge 188.24

MUD

GRAVEL

METAL PIN

GRAVEL

2 CONCRETE SLABS

EMPTY PLASTIC DUCT

2 CONCRETE SLABS

GRAVEL

SL 183.32

SL 183.57

SL 183.84

SL 184.12
SL 184.05

SL 183.85

SL 183.60

SL 183.37

SL 183.36

SL 183.59

SL 183.83

SL 184.07

SL 184.12

SL 183.91

SL 183.63

SL 183.36

SL 184.80

SL 184.71
SL 184.72

SL 184.84

SL 184.90

SL 184.64

SL 184.38

SL 184.40

SL 184.62

SL 184.90
SL 184.88

SL 184.61

SL 184.37
SL 184.38

SL 184.60

SL 184.85

SL 185.88

SL 185.65

SL 185.29

SL 184.95

SL 184.60

SL 184.20

SL 184.08

SL 184.07

SL 184.30

SL 184.55

SL 184.89

SL 185.20

SL 185.58

SL 185.85

SL 184.86SL 184.82SL 184.85SL 184.89SL 184.95
SL 185.06

SL 185.19
SL 185.36

SL 185.37SL 185.50
SL 185.60

SL 185.63SL 185.70
SL 185.80

SL 185.93
SL 186.08

SL 186.27
SL 186.48

SL 186.66SL 186.79
SL 186.96

SL 186.93

SL 186.53

SL 186.22

SL 186.00

SL 185.79SL 185.88

SL 186.08

SL 186.30

SL 186.45

SL 186.39

SL 186.12

SL 185.92

SL 186.34SL 186.34

SL 186.44SL 186.44

SL 187.40

SL 187.57

SL 187.70

SL 187.79

SL 187.96SL 187.87

SL 187.68

SL 187.51

SL 187.41

SL 187.31
SL 187.21

SL 187.31

SL 187.44

SL 187.54

SL 187.73

SL 187.64

SL 187.42

SL 187.31

SL 187.21

SL 187.09
SL 186.98

SL 187.18

SL 187.30

SL 187.40

SL 187.59

SL 183.80

SL 183.91

SL 184.05

SL 184.05

SL 183.99

SL 184.14

SL 184.15

SL 184.26

SL 184.46

SL 184.68

SL 184.94

SL 185.18

SL 185.35

SL 185.52

SL 185.61

SL 185.74

SL 185.93

SL 186.13

SL 186.30

SL 186.43

SL 186.62

SL 186.68

SL 186.73
SL 186.83 SL 186.89

SL 186.95

SL 185.15

SL 184.92

SL 184.59

SL 184.42

SL 184.12

SL 183.81

SL 183.00

SL 182.70

SL 182.90

SL 183.84

SL 184.92

SL 186.17

SL 186.88

SL 186.71

SL 186.16

SL 186.38

SL 186.65SL 187.20

SL 187.74

SL 187.18

SL 186.50

SL 185.38

SL 185.04

SL 189.07

SL 189.30

SL 189.49

SL 189.49

SL 189.44

SL 189.41

CL184.10

FE
 1

84
.0

1

FE
 1

84
.0

1

FE 184.02

FE 184.00

FE 183.69

FE 183.70

FE 183.52

FE 183.66

FE 184.08

FE 183.85

FE 183.91
FE 18

3.8
8

FE 18
3.7

5

SL 184.89

SL 185.59

SL 188.70

SL 190.85

SL 191.27

SL 188.29

SL 184.59

SL 186.13

Verge 184.64

ToB184.46

ToB184.43

To
B1

84
.5

9

To
B1

84
.5

4

BoB 184.50

Bo
B 

18
4.

30

Bo
B 

18
4.

04

Bo
B 

18
3.

92

To
B1

84
.2

7
To

B1
84

.0
8

To
B1

84
.1

4

To
B1

83
.8

1

To
B1

83
.7

8

ToB183.78
ToB183.82

ToB183.80

ToB183.67

ToB183.67

ToB183.89

ToB183.91

ToB183.64

ToB183.48

ToB183.15

ToB183.09

ToB182.88

ToB181.87

To
B1

82
.1

2

To
B1

82
.6

1

To
B1

83
.0

0

To
B1

83
.4

7

To
B1

83
.7

3

To
B1

83
.8

7

To
B1

84
.1

9

To
B1

84
.5

4

To
B1

85
.25

To
B1

84
.6

8

ToB184.97
ToB185.12

ToB184.99

ToB184.56 ToB184.50

ToB184.51

ToB184.68

ToB184.87

ToB184.87

ToB184.90

ToB184.79

ToB185.06

ToB185.18

ToB185.20

ToB185.22

To
B18

5.2
2

To
B1

85
.3

2

ToB185.25

ToB184.99

ToB185.11

ToB184.94

ToB184.92

To
B1

85
.0

1
To

B1
84

.93

To
B18

5.0
1

To
B1

84
.9

2

To
B1

84
.6

2

Ve
rg

e 1
83

.02

Verge 182.90

Bo
B 

18
3.

28
Bo

B 
18

3.
02

Bo
B 

18
2.

84

Bo
B 

18
2.

75

Bo
B 

18
2.

57

Bo
B 

18
2.

46

BoB 182.42

BoB 182.32

BoB 182.02

BoB 181.44

BoB 181.03

BoB 180.57

BoB 180.00

BoB 179.65

BoB 179.27

BoB 179.23

BoB 179.14

BoB 179.11

BoB 179.12

BoB 179.30

BoB 179.05

BoB 178.93

BoB 178.60

Bo
B 

17
8.

33

Bo
B 

17
8.

09

Bo
B 

17
7.

72

To
B1

78
.5

6

To
B1

78
.2

2

ToB178.51

ToB178.45

To
B1

78
.5

5

To
B1

78
.7

8

Bo
B 

17
8.

83

Bo
B 

17
8.

92

Bo
B 

17
8.6

1

BoB 178.57
BoB 178.60

BoB 178.71

Bo
B 

17
8.

40

BoB 177.94

BoB 178.03

Bo
B 

17
8.

30

Bo
B 

17
8.

50

Bo
B 

17
8.

90

Bo
B 

17
9.

33

Bo
B 

17
9.

60

Bo
B 

18
0.

16

Bo
B 

18
0.

67

Bo
B 

18
1.

30

Bo
B 

18
1.

23

Bo
B 

18
1.

33

Bo
B 

18
1.

38

Bo
B 

18
1.

36

Bo
B 

18
1.

22

Bo
B 

18
0.

74

Bo
B 

18
0.

23

Bo
B 

17
9.

62

Bo
B 

17
9.

36

Bo
B 

17
8.

96

Bo
B 

17
8.

71

Bo
B 

17
8.

53

Bo
B 

17
8.

27

BoB 178.09

BoB 177.94

Bo
B 

17
7.

77

To
B1

81
.6

6

To
B1

81
.3

1

BoB 181.42

Bo
B 

18
1.

48

BoB 181.47

BoB 181.51

BoB 181.54

BoB 181.54

Bo
B 

18
1.

60

Bo
B 

18
2.

12

BoB 182.17

Bo
B 

18
2.

15

BoB 182.09

To
B1

83
.5

8

To
B1

83
.3

3
To

B1
83

.2
7

ToB183.32

ToB183.37
ToB183.37

ToB183.40ToB183.43 ToB183.53

To
B1

82
.2

2ToB182.16

BoB 182.05
BoB 182.21 BoB 182.33

BoB 182.19 BoB 181.99

BoB 181.89

BoB 182.23
BoB 182.28

BoB 182.04

BoB 181.83

BoB 182.02

BoB 182.02

BoB 181.93

BoB 181.90
BoB 181.89

BoB 181.92

BoB 181.89

BoB 182.18

BoB 182.55

BoB 182.91

BoB 183.05

BoB 183.39

BoB 183.56

BoB 183.72

BoB 183.60

BoB 183.75

BoB 184.02

BoB 184.19

BoB 184.25
BoB 184.21

BoB
 18

4.2
7

Bo
B 

18
4.

28
Bo

B 
18

4.
29

BoB 184.31

BoB 184.25

BoB 184.30

BoB 184.25

Bo
B 

18
4.

27
BoB

 18
4.2

5

Bo
B 

18
4.

27

Bo
B 

18
4.

48

CONC.

CL184.16

CONC.

CL185.02

SL 183.07

SL 183.49

SL 183.67

SL 183.98

SL 184.30

SL 184.51

SL 184.79

SL 185.17

SL 184.99

SL 184.67

SL 184.80

SL 184.55

SL 184.48

SL 184.17

SL 183.95

SL 183.71

SL 183.41

SL 183.50

SL 183.79

SL 183.98

SL 184.30

SL 184.43

SL 184.58

SL 184.91

SL 184.28

SL 184.94

SL 184.97

SL 184.70

SL 184.43

SL 184.20

SL 184.03

SL 183.89

SL 183.68

SL 183.99

SL 184.09

SL 184.15

SL 184.39

SL 184.52

SL 184.73

SL 184.96

SL 185.04

SL 184.96

SL 184.96

SL 184.78

SL 184.60

SL 184.53

SL 184.36

SL 184.21

SL 184.09

SL 183.94

SL 183.90

SL 184.18

SL 184.32

SL 184.49

SL 184.69

SL 184.62

SL 184.85

SL 185.06

SL 185.17

SL 185.19

SL 184.57

SL 184.62

SL 184.64

SL 184.54

SL 184.30

SL 184.25

SL 183.75

To
B1

81
.8

0

To
B1

81
.4

7

To
B1

81
.3

9

To
B1

80
.9

8

To
B1

80
.4

9

To
B1

79
.9

4

To
B1

79
.6

2

To
B1

79
.3

3

To
B1

79
.1

4

To
B1

78
.8

6

To
B1

78
.7

0

ToB178.34

ToB178.39

To
B1

78
.3

7

ToB186.62
ToB186.58 ToB186.56

ToB186.50

BoB 189.53

Bo
B 

18
9.

48

BoB 189.23

BoB 188.95

BoB 188.57

BoB 188.29

BoB 187.67

BoB 187.44
BoB 186.93

BoB 186.57

BoB 186.28

BoB 186.26BoB 186.35
BoB 186.51

BoB 186.54
BoB 186.62

BoB 186.86BoB 187.01

BoB 187.10

BoB 187.17

BoB 187.31

BoB 187.65

BoB 187.73

BoB 187.75
BoB 187.81

Bo
B 

18
7.

99
Bo

B 
18

8.
15

Bo
B 

18
8.

31
Bo

B 
18

8.
73

Bo
B 

18
8.

93

BoB 189.24
BoB 189.80

BoB 190.23
BoB 190.57

BoB 190.70

BoB 190.74 BoB 190.83

BoB 190.91
BoB 190.92

BoB 190.94

BoB 190.83
BoB 190.90

BoB 190.66
BoB 190.55

BoB 190.29 BoB 190.16
BoB 190.02

BoB 189.96

BoB 189.73 BoB 189.67

ToB190.71
ToB190.67

To
B1

90
.5

9

ToB190.45

ToB190.30

ToB189.83

ToB189.61

ToB189.38

ToB189.02

ToB188.59

ToB187.99

ToB188.02

ToB187.91ToB187.94

ToB188.01ToB188.17
ToB188.43

ToB188.36

ToB188.44

ToB188.39

ToB188.58

ToB188.70

ToB188.89

ToB188.89

ToB188.96

To
B1

88
.9

4

To
B1

89
.1

0
To

B1
89

.3
5

ToB189.63

To
B1

89
.9

1

ToB190.15

To
B1

90
.5

3

To
B1

90
.9

3
To

B1
91

.1
9

ToB191.33

ToB191.61 ToB191.74

ToB191.67

ToB191.65
ToB191.48 ToB191.36

ToB191.15 ToB191.13
ToB191.05

ToB190.86

ToB190.89

ToB190.73

SL 190.94
SL 191.14

SL 191.06 SL 190.88
SL 190.68 SL 190.56 SL 190.53

SL 190.47 SL 190.42

SL 189.80SL 189.93SL 190.02SL 190.17SL 190.33
SL 190.45

SL 190.62SL 190.61SL 190.34

SL 189.94
SL 190.02 SL 189.99 SL 190.01 SL 189.94

SL 189.70
SL 189.65 SL 189.60

SL 189.46

SL 188.85
SL 189.11SL 189.16

SL 189.40SL 189.48
SL 189.57SL 189.58

SL 189.50

SL 189.18
SL 189.20 SL 189.06 SL 188.81

SL 188.66

SL 188.37

SL 188.59

SL 189.25

SL 189.92

SL 190.39

SL 190.69

SL 190.81

SL 190.91

SL 191.10

SL 191.02
SL 190.94

SL 190.73

SL 190.63

SL 190.53

SL 190.17

SL 190.12

SL 189.84

SL 189.52

SL 188.93

SL 188.51

SL 188.12

SL 187.50

SL 186.89

CL184.49

Gate

CE 183.43

CE 183.34

CE 183.28

CE 183.25

CE 183.18

CE 183.15

CE 183.30

CE 183.33

CE 183.37

CE 183.40

CE 183.45

CE 183.54

SL 183.20

SL 183.00

SL 182.79

SL 182.68

SL 182.56

SL 182.61

SL 182.72

SL 182.90

SL 182.99

SL 183.13

SL 183.06

SL 183.05

SL 182.90

SL 182.74

SL 182.59

Sign

GRAVEL

KT
 1

82
.5

1

KT
 1

82
.7

0

KT
 1

82
.8

6

KT
 1

83
.0

5

KT
 1

83
.2

2

KT
 1

83
.1

4

KT
 1

83
.3

4

KT
 1

83
.5

0

KT
 1

83
.6

5

KT
 1

83
.7

9

KT
 1

83
.9

5

KT
 1

84
.1

1

KB
18

2.
41

KB
18

2.
59

KB
18

2.
76

KB
18

2.
94

KB
18

3.
11

KB
18

3.
13

KB
18

3.
35

KB
18

3.
38

KB
18

3.
55

KB
18

3.
69

KB
18

3.
84

KB
18

3.
99

GRAVEL

SL 184.11

SL 184.00

SL 183.82

SL 183.67

SL 183.61

SL 183.90

SL 183.97

SL 184.18

SL 184.20

SL 184.06

SL 183.89

SL 183.52

CONC.

CONC.

CONC.

CONC.

BH

S02C

S002

184.928

S001
178.955

P003177.860

P03A176.777

S003

189.301

S004
190.250

S005
190.029

S006

187.455

S007

181.420

S008
175.483

S009
177.791

S010
176.375

S02A
186.934

S02B
181.853

188.626

S07A
178.098

5 PIN
185.834

6 PIN
185.453

3 PIN
190.791

4 PIN
189.286

SP001

SP002

SP003

SP004

SP005

SP006

SP007

SP008

SP009

90.0m

50.0m

12.0m
15.7mBoB 187.44

Mound A:
Approx 90m x 60m = 5400m²

Mound B:
Approx 90m x 50m = 4500m²

Drawing status

Drawing number

Scale

Drawing title

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING
Rev

ApprovedPurpose of Revision/Issue

Project

Client

Rev Revision/Issue
Date

Drawn Checked

A1 Date Drawn-by Checked-by

Client

Dean Sargeant, Director, Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services, Addenbrooke House, Telford, TF3 4NT

Approved-byBased on Ordnance Survey 1250 mapping with the permission of the
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office. Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to
Prosecution or Civil proceedings. Telford & Wrekin Council Licence
No. 100019694 Date 2020

L:\PROJECTS\LP\LP689 - OPC - Enabling Works\Drawings\CAD\DWG\LP689-100 Proposed Mound FINAL.dwg

Telford & Wrekin Council

Old Park Campus

Proposed Mound

FINAL

LP689-100 0

05/10/2022NTS MG DK -

Key

Notes

Recorded CA Mineshaft Location

Recorded TDC Mineshaft Location

Existing Access

Proposed Direct Access

? PIN
Existing Monitoring Pins

Proposed Monitoring Locations

Existing Mound (Mound A)

Proposed Mound (Mound B)

P
age 49

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
178.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
14a

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
172.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
SWEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
HEATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
WOODRUSH

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
ROCKALL WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
175.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
CHESTNUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
COLLIERS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
183.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
178.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
OLD PARK WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
BILBERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
BROOM DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
188.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
Gov

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
COLLIERS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
Old Park



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P

RS

RS

SV
SV SV
SV

S007
181.420

S02C
188.626

181.31

181.17

181.17

181.16

181.25
181.42

181.66
181.80

181.93
181.96182.21

182.46182.66

182.74

182.75

182.77

182.67

182.74
182.84

183.12183.21

182.43

182.41

182.39

182.37

182.32
182.41

182.32
182.28

182.13

181.96

181.78

181.59
181.46

181.16

180.94
180.89

180.79
180.70

180.84

182.25

18
1.

53
18

1.
92

18
1.

12

18
0 

79

18
1.

28

18
1.

22
18

0 
70

18
0.

97

18
0.

69

18
0 

38

18
0.

86

18
0.

60
18

0 
13

179.78

179.41179.33

179.14
179.30

179.16
179.05

178.8017
8.

71

179.13

179.59

179.60

18
0.

13

18
0.

74

178.44

178 02

178.42 177 99

17
7 

8917
8.

08

17
8.

12

17
7 

74

17
7.

92

17
8.

57

17
8 

22

17
8.

64

17
8.

74

17
8 

46

17
8.

98

17
8.

86

17
8 

6317
9.

16

17
9.

45

17
9 

1517
9.

62

17
9.

94

17
9 

58

18
0.

00

18
0.

48

180.68

180.51

180.47

180.74

180.89

181.03

181.16

181.50

181.62

181.75

181.89

181.79

181.69

181.62

181.46

181.32

181.21

180.82

180.86

180.96

181.06

181.29

181.39

181.59

181.44

181.30

181.04

180.93

180.71

180.60

180.38

180.23

180.05

180.07

179.84

179.73

179.94

180.06

180.11

180.22

180.51

180.55

180.67

180.71

180.64

180.51

180.28

180.02

179.9217
9.8

0

179.77

179.94

179.57

179.71

179.74

179.80

180.05

180.29

180.27

180.37

180.32

180.31

180.14

180.09

179.94

179.88

179.66

179.48

179.49

179.19

179.25

179.27

179.24

179.30

179.38

179.54

179.52

179.44

17
9.1

6
17

8 8
1

17
9.0

5

17
9.1

317
8 9

117
9.1

8

17
9.3

4
17

9 1
1

17
9.3

7

17
9.5

3

17
9 2

617
9.4

5

17
9.6

8
17

9 4
0

17
9.6

8

17
9 6

5

17
9.8

5

183.33
183.21

183.17
182.97

182.91
182.91

182.88
182.76

182.63
182.42

182.16
181.93

181.80
181.64

181.55
181.38

181.46
181.26

184.65

184.24

183.98

183.64

183.33

183.04

182.84

182.55

182.36

182.19

182.50

182.68

182.92

183.20

183.58

183.95

184.15

184.47

184.65

184.74 184.91

185.52

186.02

186.06

186.15

185.61

185.59

185.92

185.87

185.73

185.72

185.37

185.17

185.34

185.46

185.06

184.37

184.70

18
4.

07

18
3.

86

183.65

183.50

184.22

184.18
184.65 184.56

184.82
184.87

185.28

185.54
185.70

185.43
185.23

185.32

185.40

185.66

184.10

184.10

184.44184.13
184.48

184.37

184.05

184.47

184.20

183.92

184.32
184.17

184.67

184.36184.69

184.29

184.59

184.37

184.10
184.49

184.29

183.92

184.22

183.88
183.50183.86

183.76

183.34

183.66

183.61

183.59

183.21

183.48

183.36183.22

183.45

182.92
182.96

183.31
183.32 183.37

183.59 183.39

183.44

183.59

183.55
183.77

184.02

184.18

184.31

184.61

184.73 184.98

185.16 184.87
184.90

184.84184.61
184.32

184.09

183.65

183.43

182.81

183.11

182.97

182.97

182.69

182.10

181.94

18
1.

93 18
1.6

7

184.16 18
4.2

4
18

4.
20

183.77

18
3.

63

183.71183.67

183.62

18
3.

68

183.96

184.00

183.87

183.74

183.62182.23

182.16

181 72

182.17
182.20

182.15

185.32

185.29

185.36

185.54

185.71

186.14

186.54

186.99

187.42

187.90

188.51

189.11

189.45

189.59

189.26

188.98

188.45

187.92

187.38

186.92

186.39

185.93

185.56

185.25

185.07

184.85

184.55

184.82

185.11

185.35

185.65

186.17

186.66

187.02

187.55

188.07

188.68

189.03

189.32

189.67

189.68

189.17

188.79

188.31

187.56

187.08

186.53

186.09

185.48

185.01

184.76

184.45

184.30

183.74

183.97

184.42

184.84

185.15

185.68

186.13

186.62

187.21

187.60

188.17

188.66

189.01

189.48

189.80

189.62

189.35

188.92

188.45

187.84

187.30

187.00

186.49

185.81

185.32

184.97

184.26

183.87

183.58

183.39

183.03

183.15

183.54

183.98

184.37

184.78

185.24

185.74

186.31

186.83

187.31

187.73

188.31

188.84

189.16

189.52

190.12

190.55

190.60

190.09

188.88

188.52

187.92

187.27

186.79

186.26

184.13

183.71

183.30

182.91

182.56

182.38

182.20

182.35

182.82

183.80

185.39

185.93

186.49

187.06

187.79

190.13

190.84

190.94

190.20

182.74

182.42

182.05

181.87

181.52

181.54

181.88

182.01

182.26

182.58

185.42

185.91

191.03

190.47

185.92

183.83

183.38

182.98

182.54

182.27

182.10

181.92

181.65

190.38

191.11

191.14

190.83

186.64

186.06

184.99

184.49

184.10

183.74

183.30

182.90

182.64

182.48

182.31

182.00

182.06

182.25

182.46

182.76

183.13

183.45

183.91

184.36

184.77

185.23

186.13

190.88

191.22

191.22

186.58

185.93

185.01

184.60

184.31

183.82

183.50

183.20

182.97

182.75

182.61

182.37

182.21

182.56

182.71

182.78

183.03

183.29

183.60

183.92

184.35

184.71

185.16

185.60

186.03

186.58

191.07

190.95

186.97

186.47

185.91

185.40

184.91

184.48

184.03

183.59

183.33

183.08

182.87

182.88

182.70

182.89

183.12

183.19

183.45

183.68

184.20

184.54

184.98

185.41

185.96

186.55

187.18

188.65

188.86

189.46

189.98

190.34

190.65

190.39

190.21

189.83

189.37

188.82

188.24

185.77

185.03

184.61

184.30

183.99

183.76

183.53

183.35

183.13

182.99
183.06

183.33

183.48

183.69

184.01

184.30

184.67

185.07

185.51

185.88

186.20

188.03

188.40

189.02

189.62

189.89

189.93

189.46

189.29

188.87

188.36

187.96

187.63

187.42

186.00

185.81

185.36

184.96

184.55

184.18

183.88

183.56

183.38

183.31

183.28

183.29

183.58

183.65

183.80

184.02

184.34

184.66

184.89

185.14

185.44

185.70

186.06

186.87

187.16

187.43

187.55

188.05

188.47

188.92

189.21

188.59

188.13

188.23

188.46

188.08

187.93

187.57

187.21
187.36

187.51

187.67

187.35

187.14

186.79

186.60

186.19

186.41

186.74

186.97

186.86

186.66

186.38

186.12

185.83

186.05

186.37

186.61

186.24

186.06

185.73

185.47

185.20

185.43

185.31

185.03

185.00

185.28

184.98

184.86

184.87

184.38

184.43

184.55

184.13

184.18

183.95

184.03

184.08

183.89

183.78

18
5.

24

18
5.

15

18
5.

29

18
5.

46

18
5.

45

18
5.

62

18
5.

41

18
5.

88

18
6.

15

18
6.

55

18
6.

77

18
7.

37

18
7.

85

18
8.

38

18
9.

07

18
9.

42

189.74

189.71

189.80

189.92

189.82

19
0.2

6

190.90

191.15

191.24

191.34

191.40

191.45

191.28

191.16

190.91

190.73

190.63

190.45

190.13

189.77

189.38

188.60

188.45

188.19

187.97

187.54

18
7.

19

18
6.

68

18
6.

22

18
5.

83

18
5.

36

18
5.

14

18
4.

91

18
4.

52

18
4.

11

18
4.

06

18
3.8

1

18
3.5

3

184.38

188.79

188.13

187.65

187.21

186.93

17
7.

99

17
8.

23

17
8.

28

17
8.

38

17
8.

36

178.47

178.40
178.38

178.26
178.18

178.19

177.94

177.96

178.32

178.22

178.90

178.94

179.23

179.21

179.12

17
8.

76

178.57 178.44

178.43
178.41

178.43

178.46

17
8.

59

178.57

178.63

17
8.

77

17
8.8

8

179.01

178.32

178.35

178.49

178.73

178.63178.70

178.84

178.78

178.89

179.30

179.11

179.00

178.55

178.40

178.53

178.70

178.74

178.71

17
8.

38

17
8.

70

17
8 

25

17
8 

10

178.64

178.97

179.01

179.13

179.00

178.86

178.69

178.44

178.11

178.31

178.61

178.89

185.62

185.22

184.93

179.31
179.39

179.50
179.82

179.93

180.12

180.09

180.24

180.20

180.07

179.97

179.88

179.50

179.24

179.42

179.64

179.60

179.69

179.65

179.49

179.31

179.18

179.21

179.09

179.04

180.04

180.13

180.30

180.48

180.58

180.72

180.80

181.00

181.04

181.13

181.03

180.93

180.62

180.37

180.24

180.08

180.13

180.32

180.40

180.49

180.73

181.06

181.19

181.40

181.68

181.59

181.54

181.40

181.26

181.08

180.84

18
1.

81

18
2.

24

18
2.

75

18
3.2

9

182.07

182.25

182.25

182.26

182.28

182.26

182.25182.25

182.25 182.11
181.94

181.65
181.46

181.38
181.09

180.89

182.22

182.57

182.86

183.21

183.49

184.03

184.65

185.22

186.36

191.00190.88

187.03

179.52

179.69

179.83

179.89

179.84

182.03

181.97

181.88

181.88

181.79

181.77

181.46

190.66

189.84

183.17

183.53

184.11

18
1.

49

18
7.

62

18
7.

9418
7.

75

18
8.

2018
8.

10

18
8.

42

18
8.

39

18
8.

59

18
8.

78

18
9.

64

18
9.

36

18
8.

91

18
8.

68

188.56

188.82188.82

189.47

190.22

190.32

189.64

189.42

189.26

189.07

188.96

188.78

188.62

188.52

188.47

188.38

188.24

188.19

188.15

188.30

188.42

188.61

188.81

188.96

189.39

189.69

189.86

190.25

190.73

190.83

190.96190.83

190.67

190.44

190.36

190.06

189.82

189.65

189.56

188.03

18
7.

92
18

7.
78

18
7.

40

18
7.

17
18

7.
08

18
6.

86
18

6.
64

18
6.

53

18
6.

45

18
6.

23

18
6.

12

18
5.

90

18
5.

75

18
5.

46

18
5.

16

18
5.

02

18
4.

75

18
4.

34
18

4.
23

18
3.

92

183.55

18
3.

19

18
3.

33

18
3.

13

18
2.

80

18
2.

50

18
2.

11

18
1.

88

18
1.7

1

18
1.4

4

18
1.2

3

18
0.9

9

18
0.

73

18
0.

58

18
0.

38

18
0.

15
18

0.
06

17
9.

86

179.74
179.69

18
3.4

5

18
3.

22

185.70

185.96

186.45

186.30
186.16

186.86

187.07

187.17

187.33

187.06

186.88

18
7.

10

187.38

187.43

187.78

188.07

18
8.

55

188.46

188.23

188.14

187.91

187.90

187.86

188.73

189.03

189.15

189.22

189.40

189.31

189.47

189.31

189.22

189.23

18
4 

93
18

5.
30

18
5.

4518
5 

22

18
5.

87
18

5 
32

18
5.

61

18
5.

7318
5 

3718
6.

00

18
6.

14

18
5 

49
18

5.
83

18
6.

1118
5 

7018
6.

41

18
6.

3418
5 

9518
6.

62

18
6.

81

18
6 

4518
7.

07

18
6 

75

18
7.

77

18
7 

38

18
8.

04

18
8.

23

18
7 

8418
8.

49

18
9.

0818
8 

66

18
9.

31

189 22

18
9.6

2

189.76

189.76

18
9 

8019
0.

16

189.68

189.63

189.60

190.03

190.02

190.02

190.51

190.43

190.44

190.69

190.87

190.94

190.97

190.87

190.77

190.97

191.17

191.27

186.67
186.33

186.28

186.16

186.05

185.76

185.67

185.47

185.16

18
2.

24

18
2.1

2

18
1.9

0

18
1.6

7

18
1.5

4

18
1.5

6
18

1.6
3

18
1.3

2

18
1.2

1

18
1.

33

18
1.

60

18
1.

89

18
3.4

3

D
itc

h 
Bl

oc
ke

d 
O

ff

RS

Unable to Survey
due to dense vegetation

Unable to Survey
due to dense vegetation

Unable to Survey
due to dense vegetation

B/
W

 F
en

ce

B/
W

 F
en

ce

B/
W

 F
en

ce

B/
W

 F
en

ce

B/W Fence

B/W Fence

B/
W

 F
en

ce

B/
W

 F
en

ce

P/
W

 F
en

ce

RS

Ditc
h

Ditch

D
itc

h

D
itc

h

Ditch

Ditch

Ditch

Ditch

Di
tch

Di
tch

Di
tch

B/W Fence

Edge of Footpath

Overbridge

Unable to Survey
due to dense vegetation

CE 184.52CE 184.50CE 184.59CE 184.59

CE 184.71

CE 184.92

C
E 

18
4.

94
C

E 
18

4.
52

C
E 184.36

CE 184.37

CE 184.33CE 184.36

CE 184.40

C
E 

18
4.

59

C
E 

18
4.

79

CE 185.04CE 185.17

CE 185.25
CE 185.36

CE 185.39

C
E 

18
5.

05
C

E 
18

5.
14

C
E 

18
5.

08

C
E 

18
5.

12

CE 185.36
CE 185.48

CE 185.62

CE 185.68
CE 185.80

CE 186.06
CE 186.19CE 186.32CE 186.49

C
E 

18
6.

11

C
E 

18
5.

73

CE 185.75

CE 185.80
CE 185.81CE 185.81CE 185.81

C
E 

18
5.

86

C
E 

18
6.

22

C
E 

18
6.

46

CE 186.48

CE 186.60 CE 186.61
CE 186.65

CE 186.63 CE 186.48 CE 186.36

CE 186.21 CE 185.92
CE 185.85 CE 185.68 CE 185.58

CE 185.41 CE 185.31 CE 185.23 CE 185.16
CE 185.08

CE 184.98
CE 184.77 CE 184.62

CE 184.62
CE 184.53

CE 184.56

CE 186.68

CE 186.71 CE 186.78
CE 186.77

CE 186.78 CE 186.61 CE 186.42

CE 186.30 CE 186.06
CE 185.95 CE 185.78

CE 185.72

CE 185.56 CE 185.45 CE 185.33 CE 185.21

CE 185.15 CE 185.05
CE 184.89 CE 184.75

CE 184.74
CE 184.72 CE 184.71

C
E 

18
4.

53

C
E 184.45

CE 184.31

CE 184.24

CE 184.26

CE 184.49

CE 184.52

C
E 

18
4.

14

C
E 

18
3.

89

C
E 

18
3.

53

C
E 

18
3.

22

CE 183.19
CE 182.98

CE 183.07

C
E 

18
2.

99
C

E 
18

2.
87

C
E 

18
2.

94

C
E 

18
2.

99

CE 183.08

CE 183.06
CE 183.02 CE 182.99

CE 18
2.9

5

CE 182.96

CE 182.87

CE 182.80

CE 182.80

CE 182.83

CE 18
2.9

7

CE 18
3.0

2

C
E 

18
3.

06

C
E 

18
3.

24
C

E 
18

3.
37

C
E 

18
3.

64

C
E 

18
3.

96

CE 184.38

CE
 1

84
.5

2

C
E 184.59

CE 184.70
CE 184.51

CE 18
4.6

1

CE
 1

84
.4

7

C
E 

18
4.

12

CE 183.90 CE 183.99

CE 184.04

C
E 

18
4.

07

C
E 

18
4.

58

C
E 

18
4.

91

C
E 

18
5.

27

C
E 

18
5.

74

CE 186.10

CE 185.98

C
E 

18
5.

95
C

E 
18

5.
64

C
E 185.44

CE 185.16

CE 185.02

CE 185.04CE 184.96CE 184.94
CE 184.93

CE 184.97
CE 185.13

CE 185.32

CE 185.43
CE 185.45

CE 185.64
CE 185.64

CE 185.76CE 185.81
CE 185.89

CE 185.91
CE 186.24

CE 186.52
CE 186.58CE 186.73

CE 186.88CE 187.03
CE 187.11

CE 187.03
CE 187.02

CE
 1

87
.1

5

C
E 187.22

CE 187.19
CE 187.14

C
E 187.18

C
E 187.33

C
E 

18
7.

48
C

E 
18

7.
61

C
E 

18
7.

72
C

E 
18

7.
86

C
E 

18
7.

97
C

E 
18

8.
01

CE 188.04CE 188.04

CE 187.95

CE 187.80

CE 187.71
CE 187.64

CE 187.61
C

E 187.59
C

E 187.39

C
E 

18
7.

28

C
E 187.26

C
E 187.16

C
E 

18
7.

06

CE 186.98
CE 187.16

CE 187.13

CE 187.05 CE 187.02

CE 18
7.2

5
C

E 
18

7.
16

C
E 187.07

CE 187.03CE 187.04CE 186.97CE 186.90

CE 186.84

CE 186.80

CE 186.70

CE 186.60

CE 186.44

CE 186.18

CE 185.99

CE 185.84

C
E 185.65

C
E 185.57

C
E 

18
5.

45
C

E 
18

5.
20

C
E 

18
4.

98

C
E 

18
4.

77

CE
 1

84
.5

0

CE
 1

84
.3

2

CE
 1

84
.1

3
C

E 
18

4.
10

CE 184.16

C
E 

18
4.

05

C
E 184.00

CE 183.97

CE 183.97 CE 183.96

CE 183.89

CE 18
3.8

8

CE
 1

84
.0

8

CE
 1

83
.9

8

CE
 1

84
.0

7

CE
 1

84
.0

9

C
E 

18
4.

29

C
E 

18
4.

49

C
E 

18
4.

78

C
E 

18
5.

08

C
E 185.30

C
E 185.42

C
E 185.54

CE 185.63

CE 185.81

CE 186.05

CE 186.16

CE 186.28

CE 186.35

CE 186.54

CE 186.68
CE 186.68 CE 186.75 CE 186.74

Bo
B 

18
4.0

1

BoB 184.05

BoB 184.01
BoB 184.06

BoB 184.44

Bo
B 

18
4.

65

Bo
B 

18
4.

98
Bo

B 
18

5.
34

Bo
B 

18
5.

73
Bo

B 
18

5.
96

BoB 186.04

Bo
B 

18
6.

16

BoB 186.20

BoB 186.09

BoB 185.30
BoB 185.33

Bo
B 

18
5.

37

Bo
B 

18
5.

44

BoB 185.46

BoB 184.45BoB 184.50

BoB 184.63

BoB 184.62

BoB 184.67

BoB 184.64

BoB 184.65

BoB
 18

4.5
8

Bo
B 

18
4.

49

Bo
B 

18
3.

30
Bo

B 
18

3.
20

BoB 183.10 BoB 183.15

BoB 183.20

Bo
B 

18
3.

21

Bo
B 

18
3.

55

Bo
B 

18
3.

95

BoB 184.67BoB 184.68

BoB 184.70

BoB 184.65

Bo
B 

18
4.

87

Bo
B 

18
4.

51
Bo

B 
18

4.
13

Bo
B 

18
3.

96

Bo
B 

18
3.

94

BoB
 18

3.6
1

BoB
 18

3.6
1

Bo
B 

18
3.

52
Bo

B 
18

3.
35

BoB 183.35

BoB 183.34
BoB 183.26

BoB 183.14

BoB 182.93
BoB 182.90

BoB 182.95

BoB 183.03

BoB 182.97

Bo
B 

18
2.

97

BoB 182.95

BoB 182.95BoB 183.18

BoB 184.44

BoB 184.30

BoB 184.27

BoB 184.26

Bo
B 

18
4.

39
Bo

B 
18

4.
62

BoB 184.77

BoB 184.74
BoB 184.67

BoB
 18

4.7
2

Bo
B 

18
6.

16

Bo
B 

18
5.

87

BoB 185.79

Bo
B 

18
5.

87
Bo

B 
18

6.
15

Bo
B 

18
6.

41

BoB 185.75
BoB 185.78

BoB 185.78

BoB 185.72

BoB 185.72BoB 185.77

BoB 185.79BoB 185.86BoB 185.85

Bo
B 

18
5.

87

BoB 185.94

BoB 185.90
BoB 185.89

Bo
B 

18
6.

49
Bo

B 
18

6.
32

Bo
B 

18
6.

03
Bo

B 
18

5.
92

BoB 185.92

Bo
B 

18
5.

93

Bo
B 

18
6.

02

Bo
B 

18
6.

18

Bo
B 

18
6.

29

Bo
B 

18
6.

34

Bo
B 

18
6.

43

BoB 186.53
BoB 186.61

BoB 185.39

BoB 185.45
BoB 185.27BoB 185.23BoB 185.40

BoB 185.36
BoB 185.49

BoB 185.64BoB 185.79

BoB 185.83BoB 185.93
BoB 185.98

BoB 186.07

BoB 186.18

BoB 186.28
BoB 186.44

BoB 186.57
BoB 186.70BoB 186.82

BoB 187.06

BoB 187.29

BoB 187.29

Bo
B 

18
7.

34

Bo
B 

18
7.

43

BoB 187.52

Bo
B 

18
7.

81
Bo

B 
18

7.
90

Bo
B 

18
8.

00
Bo

B 
18

8.
17

BoB 188.28Bo
B 

18
8.

26
Bo

B 
18

8.
17

Bo
B 

18
8.

02
Bo

B 
18

7.
84

Bo
B 

18
7.

69
Bo

B 
18

7.
47

BoB 188.21

BoB 188.15

BoB 188.01
BoB 187.93

BoB 187.90

BoB 187.78

BoB 187.80

BoB 187.61

Bo
B 

18
7.

62

Bo
B 

18
7.

43

Bo
B 

18
7.

44

BoB 187.39

BoB 187.33

Bo
B 

18
7.

22
Bo

B 
18

7.
11

Bo
B 

18
7.

17
Bo

B 
18

7.
04

Bo
B 

18
7.

00

BoB 186.93
BoB 186.87

BoB 186.87
BoB 186.89

BoB 187.02

BoB 186.98

BoB 186.76

BoB 186.58

BoB 186.49

BoB 186.33

BoB 185.94

BoB 185.67

BoB 185.44

BoB 185.40

Bo
B 

18
5.

34
Bo

B 
18

5.
25

Bo
B 

18
5.

00

Bo
B 

18
4.

76

Bo
B 

18
4.

44

Bo
B 

18
4.

26

Bo
B 

18
4.

01

To
B1

86
.4

4
To

B1
86

.2
8

To
B1

85
.9

8

To
B1

85
.5

6

To
B1

85
.4

8
To

B1
84

.9
8

To
B1

84
.6

1

To
B1

84
.6

0
To

B1
85

.0
0

To
B1

85
.5

0

To
B1

85
.6

0

To
B1

85
.9

4

To
B1

86
.1

8

To
B1

86
.3

7

To
B1

85
.7

7
To

B1
85

.6
7

To
B1

85
.6

7

To
B1

85
.6

9

ToB184.92
ToB184.96

ToB185.41

ToB185.13

To
B1

84
.5

1

To
B1

84
.0

4

To
B1

83
.8

1

To
B1

83
.8

2

To
B1

83
.9

7

To
B1

84
.4

5
To

B1
84

.8
3

To
B1

85
.0

1

ToB
18

4.7
4

ToB185.30

ToB185.12

To
B1

85
.3

6
To

B1
85

.5
3

ToB185.51

ToB185.48

To
B1

85
.2

4

To
B1

85
.2

6
To

B1
84

.9
2

To
B1

84
.6

3

To
B1

84
.6

7

To
B1

84
.3

0

To
B1

84
.0

0
To

B1
84

.0
7

ToB183.70
ToB183.59

ToB183.70

ToB183.73 ToB183.66
ToB183.79

ToB183.69

ToB183.63

ToB183.62

ToB183.48
ToB183.64

ToB183.70

ToB183.54
ToB183.62

To
B18

5.3
6

ToB185.58ToB185.61

ToB185.56
ToB185.29

To
B1

85
.2

4

ToB185.03

To
B1

84
.9

5 ToB184.92
ToB184.92

ToB185.13

To
B1

85
.1

4
To

B1
85

.2
7

To
B1

86
.9

7
To

B1
86

.9
8

To
B1

86
.8

1
To

B1
86

.6
0

To
B1

86
.5

3

ToB186.31

ToB186.37
ToB186.58ToB186.57

ToB186.47
ToB186.34

ToB186.26

To
B1

86
.6

0
To

B1
86

.6
9

To
B1

86
.9

6

To
B1

87
.2

3

To
B1

87
.0

5
To

B1
87

.4
3

To
B1

87
.37

To
B1

88
.8

0
To

B1
88

.6
9

To
B1

88
.4

9

To
B1

88
.2

7
To

B1
88

.1
5

ToB187.90

ToB188.10

ToB187.66

ToB187.82

ToB187.76
ToB187.57 ToB187.73

ToB187.70 ToB187.42
ToB187.36 ToB187.06

ToB187.02

ToB186.87

ToB186.74 ToB186.46

ToB186.65 ToB186.69
ToB186.60 ToB186.46

ToB186.24 ToB186.20

ToB186.08
ToB185.91

ToB185.84
ToB185.85

ToB185.83
ToB185.93 ToB185.91

ToB185.86

ToB185.91
ToB185.88ToB185.94

ToB185.92
ToB185.89

ToB186.15

ToB186.14ToB186.32
ToB186.43ToB186.68

ToB186.78

ToB186.55

ToB186.53

ToB186.73
ToB186.89

ToB187.13
ToB187.10

ToB187.40
ToB187.35

ToB187.66ToB187.77

To
B1

87
.8

8
To

B1
88

.0
5

To
B1

87
.5

0

To
B1

87
.7

4

To
B1

87
.7

5

ToB187.71

ToB187.92
ToB187.91

To
B1

88
.0

7

To
B1

88
.1

5

ToB188.16

ToB188.31
ToB188.51

ToB188.47
ToB188.50

ToB188.56

ToB188.56

ToB188.56
ToB188.44

ToB188.60

ToB188.38

ToB188.28

ToB188.25

ToB188.30

To
B1

88
.0

7

To
B1

88
.0

1

ToB187.94

ToB187.79

To
B1

87
.8

4
To

B1
87

.81

To
B1

87
.6

0

To
B1

84
.7

2

To
B1

84
.7

2

To
B1

84
.8

9

To
B1

84
.9

0

To
B1

85
.2

1

To
B1

85
.5

1

To
B1

85
.8

2

ToB185.98
ToB186.08

ToB186.25

ToB186.44

ToB186.60

ToB186.79

ToB187.10

ToB187.17

ToB187.29

ToB187.41

ToB187.40 ToB187.64 ToB187.71 ToB187.85

ToB187.90ToB187.75

ToB187.71
ToB187.49

ToB187.35

ToB187.24

ToB187.10

ToB187.05

ToB186.86

ToB186.63

ToB186.48

ToB186.27

ToB186.16

To
B1

85
.9

4
To

B1
85

.7
5

To
B1

85
.5

2

To
B1

85
.2

0

To
B1

84
.9

5

To
B1

84
.9

5

To
B1

84
.8

4

To
B1

84
.7

5

Ve
rg

e 
18

6.
49

Ve
rg

e 
18

6.
28

Ve
rg

e 
18

6.
05

Verge 185.95 Verge 185.91 Verge 185.93

Ve
rg

e 
18

5.
86

Ve
rg

e 
18

6.
20

Verge 186.54 Verge 186.41 Verge 186.27
Verge 186.22 Verge 186.01

Verge 185.78
Verge 185.85

Verge 185.62 Verge 185.47

Ve
rg

e 
18

5.
45

Ve
rg

e 
18

5.
44

Ve
rg

e 
18

5.
37 Verge 185.32

Ve
rg

e 
18

5.
41

Ve
rg

e 
18

5.
44

Verge 185.48
Verge 185.62

Verge 185.45

Verge 185.24

Verge 185.24

Ve
rg

e 
18

4.
88

Ve
rg

e 
18

4.
67

Verge 184.53

Verge 184.47

Verge 184.48 Verge 184.46 Verge 184.45

Ve
rg

e 
18

4.
75

Ve
rg

e 
18

5.
01

Verge 185.04
Verge 184.91 Verge 184.83 Verge 184.80 Verge 184.76 Verge 184.75

Verge 184.51

Verge 184.62

Verge 183.29

Ve
rg

e 
18

3.
13

Ve
rg

e 
18

7.
75

Ve
rg

e 
18

7.
83

Ve
rg

e 
18

8.
00

Ve
rg

e 
18

8.
11

Ve
rg

e 
18

8.
27

Verge 188.34Verge 188.24

MUD

GRAVEL

METAL PIN

GRAVEL

2 CONCRETE SLABS

EMPTY PLASTIC DUCT

2 CONCRETE SLABS

GRAVEL

SL 183.32

SL 183.57

SL 183.84

SL 184.12
SL 184.05

SL 183.85

SL 183.60

SL 183.37

SL 183.36

SL 183.59

SL 183.83

SL 184.07

SL 184.12

SL 183.91

SL 183.63

SL 183.36

SL 184.80

SL 184.71
SL 184.72

SL 184.84

SL 184.90

SL 184.64

SL 184.38

SL 184.40

SL 184.62

SL 184.90
SL 184.88

SL 184.61

SL 184.37
SL 184.38

SL 184.60

SL 184.85

SL 185.88

SL 185.65

SL 185.29

SL 184.95

SL 184.60

SL 184.20

SL 184.08

SL 184.07

SL 184.30

SL 184.55

SL 184.89

SL 185.20

SL 185.58

SL 185.85

SL 184.86SL 184.82SL 184.85SL 184.89SL 184.95
SL 185.06

SL 185.19
SL 185.36

SL 185.37SL 185.50
SL 185.60

SL 185.63SL 185.70
SL 185.80

SL 185.93
SL 186.08

SL 186.27
SL 186.48

SL 186.66SL 186.79
SL 186.96

SL 186.93

SL 186.53

SL 186.22

SL 186.00

SL 185.79SL 185.88

SL 186.08

SL 186.30

SL 186.45

SL 186.39

SL 186.12

SL 185.92

SL 186.34SL 186.34

SL 186.44SL 186.44

SL 187.40

SL 187.57

SL 187.70

SL 187.79

SL 187.96SL 187.87

SL 187.68

SL 187.51

SL 187.41

SL 187.31
SL 187.21

SL 187.31

SL 187.44

SL 187.54

SL 187.73

SL 187.64

SL 187.42

SL 187.31

SL 187.21

SL 187.09
SL 186.98

SL 187.18

SL 187.30

SL 187.40

SL 187.59

SL 183.80

SL 183.91

SL 184.05

SL 184.05

SL 183.99

SL 184.14

SL 184.15

SL 184.26

SL 184.46

SL 184.68

SL 184.94

SL 185.18

SL 185.35

SL 185.52

SL 185.61

SL 185.74

SL 185.93

SL 186.13

SL 186.30

SL 186.43

SL 186.62

SL 186.68

SL 186.73
SL 186.83 SL 186.89

SL 186.95

SL 185.15

SL 184.92

SL 184.59

SL 184.42

SL 184.12

SL 183.81

SL 183.00

SL 182.70

SL 182.90

SL 183.84

SL 184.92

SL 186.17

SL 186.88

SL 186.71

SL 186.16

SL 186.38

SL 186.65SL 187.20

SL 187.74

SL 187.18

SL 186.50

SL 185.38

SL 185.04

SL 189.07

SL 189.30

SL 189.49

SL 189.49

SL 189.44

SL 189.41

CL184.10

FE
 1

84
.0

1

FE
 1

84
.0

1

FE 184.02

FE 184.00

FE 183.69

FE 183.70

FE 183.52

FE 183.66

FE 184.08

FE 183.85

FE 183.91
FE 18

3.8
8

FE 18
3.7

5

SL 185.59

SL 188.70

SL 190.85

SL 191.27

SL 188.29

SL 184.59

SL 186.13

ToB183.64

ToB183.48

ToB183.15

ToB183.09

ToB182.88

ToB181.87

To
B1

82
.1

2

To
B1

82
.6

1

To
B1

83
.0

0

To
B1

83
.4

7

To
B1

83
.7

3

To
B1

83
.8

7

To
B1

84
.1

9

To
B1

84
.5

4

To
B1

85
.25

To
B1

84
.6

8

ToB184.97
ToB185.12

ToB184.99

ToB184.56 ToB184.50

ToB184.51

ToB184.68

ToB184.87

ToB184.87

ToB184.90

ToB184.79

ToB185.06

ToB185.18

ToB185.20

ToB184.94

ToB184.92

To
B1

85
.0

1
To

B1
84

.93

To
B18

5.0
1

BoB 179.65

BoB 179.27

BoB 179.23

BoB 179.14

BoB 179.11

BoB 179.12

BoB 179.30

BoB 179.05

BoB 178.93

BoB 178.60

Bo
B 

17
8.

33

Bo
B 

17
8.

09

Bo
B 

17
7.

72

To
B1

78
.5

6

To
B1

78
.2

2

ToB178.51

ToB178.45

To
B1

78
.5

5

To
B1

78
.7

8

Bo
B 

17
8.

83

Bo
B 

17
8.

92

Bo
B 

17
8.6

1

BoB 178.57
BoB 178.60

BoB 178.71

Bo
B 

17
8.

40

BoB 177.94

BoB 178.03

Bo
B 

17
8.

30

Bo
B 

17
8.

50

Bo
B 

17
8.

90

Bo
B 

17
9.

33

Bo
B 

17
9.

60

Bo
B 

18
0.

16

Bo
B 

18
0.

67

Bo
B 

18
1.

30

Bo
B 

18
1.

23

Bo
B 

18
1.

33

Bo
B 

18
1.

38

Bo
B 

18
1.

36

Bo
B 

18
1.

22

Bo
B 

18
0.

74

Bo
B 

18
0.

23

Bo
B 

17
9.

62

Bo
B 

17
9.

36

Bo
B 

17
8.

96

Bo
B 

17
8.

71

Bo
B 

17
8.

53

Bo
B 

17
8.

27

BoB 178.09

BoB 177.94

Bo
B 

17
7.

77

To
B1

81
.6

6

To
B1

81
.3

1

BoB 181.42

Bo
B 

18
1.

48

BoB 181.47

BoB 181.51

BoB 181.54

BoB 181.54

Bo
B 

18
1.

60

Bo
B 

18
2.

12

BoB 182.17

Bo
B 

18
2.

15

BoB 182.09

To
B1

83
.5

8

To
B1

83
.3

3
To

B1
83

.2
7

ToB183.32

ToB183.37
ToB183.37

ToB183.40ToB183.43 ToB183.53

To
B1

82
.2

2ToB182.16

BoB 182.05
BoB 182.21 BoB 182.33

BoB 182.19 BoB 181.99

BoB 181.89

BoB 182.23
BoB 182.28

BoB 182.04

BoB 181.83

BoB 182.02

BoB 182.02

BoB 181.93

BoB 181.90
BoB 181.89

BoB 181.92

BoB 181.89

BoB 182.18

BoB 182.55

BoB 182.91

BoB 183.05

BoB 183.39

BoB 183.56

BoB 183.72

BoB 183.60

BoB 183.75

BoB 184.02

BoB 184.19

BoB 184.25

BoB 184.25

CONC.

CL184.16

CONC.

CL185.02

SL 183.07

SL 183.49

SL 183.67

SL 183.98

SL 184.30

SL 184.51

SL 184.79

SL 185.17

SL 184.99

SL 184.67

SL 184.80

SL 184.55

SL 184.48

SL 184.17

SL 183.95

SL 183.71

SL 183.41

SL 183.50

SL 183.79

SL 183.98

SL 184.30

SL 184.43

SL 184.58

SL 184.91

SL 184.28

SL 184.94

SL 184.97

SL 184.70

SL 184.43

SL 184.20

SL 184.03

SL 183.89

SL 183.68

SL 183.99

SL 184.09

SL 184.15

SL 184.39

SL 184.52

SL 184.73

SL 184.96

SL 185.04

SL 184.96

SL 184.96

SL 184.78

SL 184.60

SL 184.53

SL 184.36

SL 184.85

SL 185.06

SL 185.17

SL 185.19

To
B1

81
.8

0

To
B1

81
.4

7

To
B1

81
.3

9

To
B1

80
.9

8

To
B1

80
.4

9

To
B1

79
.9

4

To
B1

79
.6

2

To
B1

79
.3

3

To
B1

79
.1

4

To
B1

78
.8

6

To
B1

78
.7

0

ToB178.34

ToB178.39

To
B1

78
.3

7

ToB186.62
ToB186.58 ToB186.56

ToB186.50

BoB 189.53

Bo
B 

18
9.

48

BoB 189.23

BoB 188.95

BoB 188.57

BoB 188.29

BoB 187.67

BoB 187.44
BoB 186.93

BoB 186.57

BoB 186.28

BoB 186.26BoB 186.35
BoB 186.51

BoB 186.54
BoB 186.62

BoB 186.86BoB 187.01

BoB 187.10

BoB 187.17

BoB 187.31

BoB 187.44

BoB 187.65

BoB 187.73

BoB 187.75
BoB 187.81

Bo
B 

18
7.

99
Bo

B 
18

8.
15

Bo
B 

18
8.

31
Bo

B 
18

8.
73

Bo
B 

18
8.

93

BoB 189.24
BoB 189.80

BoB 190.23
BoB 190.57

BoB 190.70

BoB 190.74 BoB 190.83

BoB 190.91
BoB 190.92

BoB 190.94

BoB 190.83
BoB 190.90

BoB 190.66
BoB 190.55

BoB 190.29 BoB 190.16
BoB 190.02

BoB 189.96

BoB 189.73 BoB 189.67

ToB190.71
ToB190.67

To
B1

90
.5

9

ToB190.45

ToB190.30

ToB189.83

ToB189.61

ToB189.38

ToB189.02

ToB188.59

ToB187.99

ToB188.02

ToB187.91ToB187.94

ToB188.01ToB188.17
ToB188.43

ToB188.36

ToB188.44

ToB188.39

ToB188.58

ToB188.70

ToB188.89

ToB188.89

ToB188.96

To
B1

88
.9

4

To
B1

89
.1

0
To

B1
89

.3
5

ToB189.63

To
B1

89
.9

1

ToB190.15

To
B1

90
.5

3

To
B1

90
.9

3
To

B1
91

.1
9

ToB191.33

ToB191.61 ToB191.74

ToB191.67

ToB191.65
ToB191.48 ToB191.36

ToB191.15 ToB191.13
ToB191.05

ToB190.86

ToB190.89

ToB190.73

SL 190.94
SL 191.14

SL 191.06 SL 190.88
SL 190.68 SL 190.56 SL 190.53

SL 190.47 SL 190.42

SL 189.80SL 189.93SL 190.02SL 190.17SL 190.33
SL 190.45

SL 190.62SL 190.61SL 190.34

SL 189.94
SL 190.02 SL 189.99 SL 190.01 SL 189.94

SL 189.70
SL 189.65 SL 189.60

SL 189.46

SL 188.85
SL 189.11SL 189.16

SL 189.40SL 189.48
SL 189.57SL 189.58

SL 189.50

SL 189.18
SL 189.20 SL 189.06 SL 188.81

SL 188.66

SL 188.37

SL 188.59

SL 189.25

SL 189.92

SL 190.39

SL 190.69

SL 190.81

SL 190.91

SL 191.10

SL 191.02
SL 190.94

SL 190.73

SL 190.63

SL 190.53

SL 190.17

SL 190.12

SL 189.84

SL 189.52

SL 188.93

SL 188.51

SL 188.12

SL 187.50

SL 186.89

CL184.49

Gate

CE 183.43

CE 183.34

CE 183.28

CE 183.25

CE 183.18

CE 183.15

CE 183.30

CE 183.33

CE 183.37

CE 183.40

CE 183.45

CE 183.54

SL 183.20

SL 183.00

SL 182.79

SL 182.68

SL 182.56

SL 182.61

SL 182.72

SL 182.90

SL 182.99

SL 183.13

SL 183.06

SL 183.05

SL 182.90

SL 182.74

SL 182.59

Sign

GRAVEL

KT
 1

82
.5

1

KT
 1

82
.7

0

KT
 1

82
.8

6

KT
 1

83
.0

5

KT
 1

83
.2

2

KT
 1

83
.1

4

KT
 1

83
.3

4

KT
 1

83
.5

0

KT
 1

83
.6

5

KT
 1

83
.7

9

KT
 1

83
.9

5

KT
 1

84
.1

1

KB
18

2.
41

KB
18

2.
59

KB
18

2.
76

KB
18

2.
94

KB
18

3.
11

KB
18

3.
13

KB
18

3.
35

KB
18

3.
38

KB
18

3.
55

KB
18

3.
69

KB
18

3.
84

KB
18

3.
99

GRAVEL

SL 184.11

SL 184.00

SL 183.82

SL 183.67

SL 183.61

SL 183.90

SL 183.97

SL 184.18

SL 184.20

SL 184.06

SL 183.89

SL 183.52

5 PIN
185.834

6 PIN
185.453

CONC.

3 PIN
190.791

4 PIN
189.286

CONC.

CONC.

CONC.

BH

SP002

SP003

SP004

SP005

SP006

SP007

SP008

SP009

A A'

90.0m

50.0m

B

B'

C

C'

Drawing status

Drawing number

Scale

Drawing title

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING
Rev

ApprovedPurpose of Revision/Issue

Project

Client

Rev Revision/Issue
Date

Drawn Checked

A1 Date Drawn-by Checked-by

Client

Dean Sargeant, Director, Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services, Addenbrooke House, Telford, TF3 4NT

Approved-byBased on Ordnance Survey 1250 mapping with the permission of the
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office. Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to
Prosecution or Civil proceedings. Telford & Wrekin Council Licence
No. 100019694 Date 2020

L:\PROJECTS\LP\LP689 - OPC - Enabling Works\Drawings\CAD\DWG\LP689-103 Cross Sections.dwg

Telford & Wrekin Council

LP689 - Old Park Campus

Cross Sections
1 of 3

FINAL

LP689-103-1 0

22/09/20221:500 MG DK -

Existing Access

Proposed Direct Access

Cross Section Line

Proposed Mound

Old Park Campus Site Boundary

A A'

Cross Section Cut Line

Key

Notes

P
age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank



A

A'

182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189

182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189

182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189

182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189

182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189

182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189

Drawing status

Drawing number

Scale

Drawing title

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING
Rev

ApprovedPurpose of Revision/Issue

Project

Client

Rev Revision/Issue
Date

Drawn Checked

A1 Date Drawn-by Checked-by

Client

Dean Sargeant, Director, Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services, Addenbrooke House, Telford, TF3 4NT

Approved-byBased on Ordnance Survey 1250 mapping with the permission of the
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office. Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to
Prosecution or Civil proceedings. Telford & Wrekin Council Licence
No. 100019694 Date 2020

L:\PROJECTS\LP\LP689 - OPC - Enabling Works\Drawings\CAD\DWG\LP689-103 Cross Sections.dwg

Telford & Wrekin Council

LP689 - Old Park Campus

Cross Section A-A'
2 of 3

FINAL

LP689-103-2 0

22/09/20221:100 MG DK -

mAOD mAOD

mAOD mAOD

mAOD mAOD

0m 10m 20m 30m 40m 50m

50m 60m 70m 80m 90m

90m 100m 110m 120m 130m 140m

Key

Notes

Existing Levels

Proposed Levels

P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



C
C'182

183
184
185
186
187
188
189

182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189

Drawing status

Drawing number

Scale

Drawing title

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING
Rev

ApprovedPurpose of Revision/Issue

Project

Client

Rev Revision/Issue
Date

Drawn Checked

A1 Date Drawn-by Checked-by

Client

Dean Sargeant, Director, Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services, Addenbrooke House, Telford, TF3 4NT

Approved-byBased on Ordnance Survey 1250 mapping with the permission of the
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office. Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to
Prosecution or Civil proceedings. Telford & Wrekin Council Licence
No. 100019694 Date 2020

L:\PROJECTS\LP\LP689 - OPC - Enabling Works\Drawings\CAD\DWG\LP689-103 Cross Sections.dwg

Telford & Wrekin Council

LP689 - Old Park Campus

Cross Section B-B' & C-C'
3 of 3

FINAL

LP689-103-3 0

22/09/20221:100 MG DK -

mAOD mAOD

0m 10m 20m 30m 40m 50m

B
B'

189

183
184
185
186
187
188

mAOD mAOD

0m 10m 20m 30m 40m 50m

189

183
184
185
186
187
188

Key

Notes

Existing Levels

Proposed Levels

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Based on Ordnance Survey 1250 mapping with the permission of
the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office. Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead
to Prosecution or Civil proceedings.
Telford & Wrekin Council Licence No. 100019694 Date 2020

Drawing status

Drawing number

Scale

Drawing title

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING
Rev

ApprovedPurpose of revision

Project

Client

Rev Revision
Date

Drawn Checked

ApprovedDestinationIssue File Type Date

A0 Date Drawn-by Approved-by

Client

Dean Sargeant, Director, Neighbourhood & Enforcement Services, Addenbrooke House, Telford, TF3 4NT

Checked-by

L:\PROJECTS\LP\LP689 - OPC - Enabling Works\Drawings\CAD\DWG\LP689-102 Proposed HGV Routing Route 2.dwg

Telford & Wrekin Council

LP689 - Old Park Campus

Proposed HGV Routing

FINAL

LP689-102 0

05/10/20221:2000 MG DK -

Key

Notes

HGV Route A (Station Quarter to Old Park Campus)

HGV Route B (Old Park Campus to Station Quarter)

Old Park Campus Site Boundary

P
age 57

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
Silkin Way (Path)

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
(Station)

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
Telford Central

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
El Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
Addenbrooke House

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
Darby House

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
142.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
FSs

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
Kendal Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
142.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
FSs

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
151.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
Windsor House

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
QUEENSWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
Silkin Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
Rampart Court Retail Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
Bishton

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
Cycle Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
BOYD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
The Euston Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
LAWN CENTRAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
Hollinswood

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
RAMPART WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
Lift

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
Lift

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
IRONMASTERS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
The International Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
Gas Gov

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
El Sub Stas

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
142.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
137.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
DALE ACRE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
DEERCOTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
ST QUENTIN GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
Hollinswood

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
ROUNDABOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
ST QUENTIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
QUEEN ELIZABETH AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
Silkin Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
DELBURY COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
DALFORD COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
147.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
145.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
Multistorey Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
DEERCOTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
Ramp

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
Brodie House

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
GRANGE CENTRAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
Hazledine House

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
El Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
ST QUENTIN GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
Footbridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
Ramp

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
(Government Office)

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
Matheson House

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
147

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
DUNSHEATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
138

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
144.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
151.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
Governor

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
ROUNDABOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
HOLLINSGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
HOLLINSGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
Shelters

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
DOWNTON COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
DEERCOTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
DALE ACRE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
139.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
Hollinswood

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
FARM LODGE GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
Health Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
RHODES AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
QUEEN ELIZABETH

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
Spout Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
The Stepping

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
Stones Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
Gas Gov

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
Sports

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
GG

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
Local Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
Malinslee

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
187.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
186.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
WITHYWOOD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
Malinslee

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
SUSSEX GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
183.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
& Childrens Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
Old Park Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
Ps

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
STONE ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
LAWNSWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
179.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
LAWNSWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
SPOUT LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
155.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
WOODHOUSE CENTRAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
Hazeldine House

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
140

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
224 to 226

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
201

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
215a

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
Clock

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
4 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
138

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
Tower

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
222

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
Ramp

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
210

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
3b

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
208

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
TOWN CENTRE

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
Subway

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
(Law Courts)

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
Telford Justice Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
Filling Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
169.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
Divisional

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
Gas Govs

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
SOUTHWATER WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
Spout Mound

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
Bingo Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
Meeting Point

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
Ice Rink

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
Rising Bollard

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
Southwater One

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
Cinema

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
Silkin Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
Bowling Alley

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
GGs

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
Electricity Sub Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
Northfield Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
PC

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
157

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
219

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
Telford Bus Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
147

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
25 to 27

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
229 ti 231

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
159 to 161

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
New Row

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
Central Square

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
Dean

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
Square

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
Square

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
Kielder

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
Square

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
Sherwood Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
Sherwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
Southwater

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
North Sherwood Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
Dean Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
Sherwood Row

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
Wyre Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
New Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
Ashdown Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
The Border

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
Thetford Chase

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
(Car Park)

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
Subway

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
117a

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
117b

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
39 to 41

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
43 to 45

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
211a

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
31 to 33

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
NORTHFIELD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
Multi-storey Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
199

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
197

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
215

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
243

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
240

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
El Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
228

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
PCs

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
235 to 237

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
244 to 250

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
Silkin Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
Gas Gov

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
154

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
3a

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
PC

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
162.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
209

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
146

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
216

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
Police HQ

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
151.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
205

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
37a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
218 to 220

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
142

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
153

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
MALINSGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
Footbridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
Fountain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
Line of Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
Ridgemount

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
JUBILEE GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
Silkin Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
The Severn Gorge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
Parkside Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
Thomas Telford School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
Job Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
190.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
Pp Ho

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
ROYAL WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
BRUNEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
181.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
174.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
174.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
177.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
WEST CENTRE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
ROUNDABOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
MALINSLEE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
176.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
184.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
SOUTHWATER WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
Malinslee

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
175.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
193.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
Spout Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
65 to 68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
PRINCE CHARLES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
COACHWELL CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
Family Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
186.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
Play

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
PRINCE EDWARD CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
Isaiah's Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
Chelsea Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
Spout Pool

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
Spout Mound

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
Cherry Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
Library

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
Rising

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
Bollards

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
Multi-storey Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
Sports Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
Rising Bollard

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
Ps

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
Ps

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
Visitor Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
Memorial

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
Bandstand

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
Silkin Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
Silkin Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
Dark Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
Southwater

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
Malinslee

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
The Old

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
School House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
Electricity Sub Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
THE COPPICE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
Gas Gov

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
Carrick

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
The New Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
11b

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
4b

AutoCAD SHX Text_1261
11c

AutoCAD SHX Text_1262
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1263
COLLIERS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1264
Retail Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1265
Ps

AutoCAD SHX Text_1266
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1267
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1268
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1269
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1270
COLLIERS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1271
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1272
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1273
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1274
Torrkil House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1275
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1276
PARK LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1277
174.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1278
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1279
179.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1280
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1281
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1282
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1283
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1284
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1285
HALL PARK WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1286
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1287
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1288
Telford Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1289
Gas Gov

AutoCAD SHX Text_1290
Franmar

AutoCAD SHX Text_1291
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1292
180.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1293
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1294
Gas Gov

AutoCAD SHX Text_1295
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1296
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1297
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1298
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1299
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1300
Padmore

AutoCAD SHX Text_1301
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_1302
Fuller House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1303
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1304
Gas Gov

AutoCAD SHX Text_1305
Cinema

AutoCAD SHX Text_1306
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1307
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_1308
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1309
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1310
Routh House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1311
155.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1312
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_1313
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_1314
157.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1315
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1316
WOODHOUSE CENTRAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1317
Blount House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1318
Hall Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1319
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1320
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1321
Tennis Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1322
Mast (Telecommunication)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1323
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1324
RAMPART

AutoCAD SHX Text_1325
168.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1326
COLLIERS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1327
ROUNDABOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1328
Clock Tower

AutoCAD SHX Text_1329
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1330
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1331
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1332
156.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1333
161.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1334
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1335
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1336
Gas Gov

AutoCAD SHX Text_1337
TELFORD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1338
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1339
Telford Plaza

AutoCAD SHX Text_1340
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1341
Tennis Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1342
Silkin Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_1343
Silkin Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_1344
FORGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1345
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_1346
156.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1347
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_1348
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1349
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_1350
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_1351
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_1352
Jordan House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1353
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1354
FORGE GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1355
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1356
ROUNDABOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1357
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1358
HALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1359
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_1360
157.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1361
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1362
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1363
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1364
153.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1365
TOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1366
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1367
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_1368
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1369
Gas Gov

AutoCAD SHX Text_1370
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1371
Telford Square

AutoCAD SHX Text_1372
HALL PARK WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1373
New Town House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1374
Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_1375
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1376
LAWN CENTRAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1377
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_1378
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1379
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_1380
FSs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1381
IRONMASTERS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1382
Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_1383
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_1384
BAPTIST AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1385
(odd)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1386
69 to 75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1387
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1388
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1389
CAMBRIDGE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1390
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_1391
Cycle Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_1392
WEST CENTRE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1393
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1394
OLD PARK ROUNDABOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1395
DAWLEY GREEN WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1396
189.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1397
193.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1398
197.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1399
Balancing Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1400
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1401
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1402
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1403
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1404
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1405
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1406
1 to 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1407
(odd)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1408
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1409
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1410
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1411
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1412
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1413
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1414
9 to 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1415
(odd)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1416
CAMBRIDGE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1417
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1418
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1419
192.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1420
PARK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1421
ROYAL WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1422
196.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1423
194.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1424
195.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1425
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1426
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1427
ANDREW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1428
PRINCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1429
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1430
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1431
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1432
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1433
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1434
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1435
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1436
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1437
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1438
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1439
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1440
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1441
138

AutoCAD SHX Text_1442
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_1443
Woodlea

AutoCAD SHX Text_1444
ST LEONARD'S ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1445
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1446
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1447
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1448
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1449
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1450
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1451
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1452
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1453
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1454
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1455
The Hawthorns

AutoCAD SHX Text_1456
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1457
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1458
QUEEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1459
DAVIDS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1460
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1461
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1462
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_1463
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1464
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1465
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1466
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1467
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1468
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1469
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1470
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1471
ELIZABETH WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1472
FIELD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1473
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_1474
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_1475
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_1476
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1477
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1478
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1479
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1480
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_1481
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1482
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1483
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1484
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1485
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1486
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1487
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1488
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1489
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1490
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1491
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1492
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1493
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1494
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1495
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1496
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1497
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1498
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1499
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1500
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1501
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1502
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1503
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1504
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1505
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1506
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1507
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1508
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1509
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1510
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1511
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1512
Cycle Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_1513
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1514
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1515
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_1516
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1517
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1518
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1519
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1520
C Tk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1521
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1522
(covered)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1523
Reservoir

AutoCAD SHX Text_1524
Sloping masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_1525
Sloping masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_1526
Sloping

AutoCAD SHX Text_1527
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1528
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1529
83a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1530
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1531
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1532
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1533
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1534
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1535
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1536
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1537
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1538
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1539
EDWARD PARRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1540
200.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1541
200.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1542
Kingscote

AutoCAD SHX Text_1543
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1544
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1545
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1546
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1547
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1548
Dene

AutoCAD SHX Text_1549
Chellow

AutoCAD SHX Text_1550
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1551
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1552
Sloping masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_1553
ST CHRISTOPHERS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1554
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1555
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1556
203.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1557
Trentholme

AutoCAD SHX Text_1558
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1559
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1560
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1561
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1562
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1563
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1564
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1565
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1566
masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_1567
Subway

AutoCAD SHX Text_1568
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1569
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1570
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1571
Manorbier

AutoCAD SHX Text_1572
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_1573
CEMETERY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1574
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1575
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1576
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1577
204.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1578
Factory

AutoCAD SHX Text_1579
Factory

AutoCAD SHX Text_1580
Malinslee

AutoCAD SHX Text_1581
Dawley Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_1582
CAVAN DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1583
B1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1584
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_1585
A1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1586
B5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1587
A6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1588
Industrial Estate

AutoCAD SHX Text_1589
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_1590
(telecommunication)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1591
(AR Centre)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1592
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_1593
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1594
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1595
BRELADE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1596
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1597
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1598
Bridgeman House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1599
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_1600
Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_1601
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1602
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1603
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1604
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1605
BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1606
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1607
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1608
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1609
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1610
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1611
Chandaki

AutoCAD SHX Text_1612
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1613
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1614
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1615
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1616
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1617
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1618
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1619
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1620
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1621
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1622
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1623
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1624
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1625
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1626
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1627
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1628
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1629
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1630
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1631
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1632
Malinslee

AutoCAD SHX Text_1633
St Davids Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_1634
St Christophers Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_1635
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1636
ALMA AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1637
ALMA AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1638
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1639
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1640
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1641
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1642
ALMA AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1643
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1644
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1645
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1646
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1647
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1648
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1649
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1650
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1651
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1652
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1653
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1654
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1655
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1656
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1657
Alma Fields

AutoCAD SHX Text_1658
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1659
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1660
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1661
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1662
ST LEONARD'S PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1663
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1664
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1665
RHODES AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1666
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1667
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1668
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1669
ST LEONARD'S ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1670
Mast (Telecommunication)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1671
83b

AutoCAD SHX Text_1672
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1673
47a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1674
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1675
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1676
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1677
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1678
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1679
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1680
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1681
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1682
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1683
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1684
199.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1685
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1686
PEVERIL BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1687
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1688
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1689
DAWLEY GREEN WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1690
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1691
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1692
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1693
CECIL CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1694
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1695
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1696
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1697
Cycle Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_1698
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1699
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1700
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1701
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1702
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1703
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1704
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_1705
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_1706
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1707
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1708
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1709
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1710
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1711
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1712
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1713
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_1714
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1715
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1716
Haddon Place

AutoCAD SHX Text_1717
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1718
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1719
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1720
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1721
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1722
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1723
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1724
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1725
Subway

AutoCAD SHX Text_1726
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1727
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1728
BANK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1729
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1730
C Tk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1731
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_1732
Baptist

AutoCAD SHX Text_1733
Dawley

AutoCAD SHX Text_1734
Argyll

AutoCAD SHX Text_1735
Hensall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1736
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1737
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1738
Tara

AutoCAD SHX Text_1739
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1740
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1741
DAWLEY BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1742
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1743
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1744
Andsgar

AutoCAD SHX Text_1745
Clee View

AutoCAD SHX Text_1746
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1747
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1748
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1749
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1750
Nuholme

AutoCAD SHX Text_1751
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1752
Orchard

AutoCAD SHX Text_1753
Cherry

AutoCAD SHX Text_1754
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1755
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1756
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1757
203.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1758
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1759
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1760
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1761
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1762
14a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1763
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1764
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1765
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1766
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1767
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1768
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1769
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1770
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1771
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1772
172.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1773
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1774
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1775
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1776
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1777
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1778
SWEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1779
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1780
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1781
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1782
HEATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1783
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1784
WOODRUSH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1785
GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1786
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1787
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1788
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1789
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1790
ROCKALL WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1791
175.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1792
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1793
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1794
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1795
CHESTNUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1796
COLLIERS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1797
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1798
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1799
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1800
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1801
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1802
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1803
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1804
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1805
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1806
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1807
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1808
183.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1809
178.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1810
OLD PARK WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1811
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1812
BILBERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1813
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1814
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1815
BROOM DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1816
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1817
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1818
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1819
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1820
188.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1821
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1822
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1823
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1824
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1825
Gov

AutoCAD SHX Text_1826
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1827
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1828
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_1829
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1830
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1831
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1832
COLLIERS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1833
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1834
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1835
Old Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1836
180.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1837
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1838
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1839
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1840
182.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1841
LOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1842
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1843
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1844
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1845
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1846
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1847
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1848
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1849
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1850
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1851
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1852
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1853
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1854
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1855
WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1856
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1857
BRAMBLES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1858
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1859
PORTLAND DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1860
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1861
COLLIERS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1862
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1863
179.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1864
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1865
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1866
THE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1867
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1868
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1869
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1870
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1871
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1872
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1873
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1874
185.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1875
The Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_1876
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1877
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1878
Highfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_1879
174.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1880
Linden

AutoCAD SHX Text_1881
Lindisfarne

AutoCAD SHX Text_1882
Buena Vista

AutoCAD SHX Text_1883
Windhaven

AutoCAD SHX Text_1884
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1885
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1886
179.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1887
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1888
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1889
Copperfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_1890
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1891
PARK LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1892
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1893
Haughton

AutoCAD SHX Text_1894
THE CREST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1895
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1896
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1897
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1898
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1899
El Sub Stas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1900
Old Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1901
Forge Retail Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1902
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1903
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1904
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1905
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1906
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1907
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1908
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_1909
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1910
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1911
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1912
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1913
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1914
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1915
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1916
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1917
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1918
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1919
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1920
140.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1921
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1922
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1923
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1924
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1925
Stas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1926
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_1927
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1928
FORGE JUNCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_1929
M 54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1930
ACER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1931
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1932
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1933
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1934
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1935
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1936
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1937
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1938
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1939
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1940
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1941
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1942
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1943
BARBERRY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1944
THE ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1945
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1946
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1947
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1948
Cycle Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_1949
ACER CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1950
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1951
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1952
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1953
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1954
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1955
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1956
178.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1957
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1958
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1959
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1960
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1961
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1962
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1963
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1964
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1965
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1966
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1967
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1968
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1969
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1970
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1971
Old Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1972
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1973
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1974
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1975
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1976
Willow

AutoCAD SHX Text_1977
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1978
167.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1979
168.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1980
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1981
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1982
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1983
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1984
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1985
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1986
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1987
OLD PARK WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1988
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1989
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1990
Aysgarth

AutoCAD SHX Text_1991
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1992
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1993
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1994
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1995
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1996
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1997
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1998
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1999
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2000
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2001
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2002
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2003
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2004
Melrose

AutoCAD SHX Text_2005
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2006
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2007
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2008
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2009
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2010
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2011
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2012
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2013
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2014
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2015
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2016
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2017
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2018
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2019
BELLPIT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2020
OLD COPPICE GRANGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2021
PORTOBELLO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2022
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2023
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2024
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2025
168.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2026
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2027
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2028
WHITEBEAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2029
169.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2030
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2031
Lyndhurst

AutoCAD SHX Text_2032
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2033
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2034
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2035
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2036
175.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2037
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2038
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2039
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2040
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2041
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2042
173.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2043
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2044
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2045
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2046
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2047
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2048
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2049
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2050
LILAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2051
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2052
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2053
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2054
CLARE'S LANE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2055
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_2056
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2057
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2058
167.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2059
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2060
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2061
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_2062
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_2063
Mast (Telecommunication)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2064
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2065
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2066
M54

AutoCAD SHX Text_2067
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2068
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2069
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2070
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_2071
QUEENSWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2072
Silkin Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_2073
Reservoir

AutoCAD SHX Text_2074
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_2075
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2076
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2077
135.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2078
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_2079
Cycle Way



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	6 Planning Applications for Determination
	6a TWC/20022/0210 - Site of 2 Elim Terrace, Trench Road, Trench, Telford, Shropshire
	1. Location Plan and Existing Block Plan
	2. Proposed Block Plan with Access Details
	3. Proposed Floor Plans
	4. Proposed Elevations Plan

	6b TWC/2022/0804 - Land west of, Hollinshead Way, Old Park, Telford, Shropshire
	1. Location plan
	2. Proposed Block Plan 1 of 2
	Sheets and Views
	LP689-101 Block Plan FINAL-LP689-101-1


	3. Proposed Block Plan 2 of 2
	Sheets and Views
	LP689-101 Block Plan FINAL-LP689-101-2


	4. Proposed Siting of Mound B (in relation to Mound A)
	Sheets and Views
	LP689-100 Proposed Mound FINAL-Layout1


	5. Location of Cross-Sections
	Sheets and Views
	LP689-103 Cross Sections-LP689-103-1


	6. Cross Section A-A
	Sheets and Views
	LP689-103 Cross Sections-LP689-103-2


	7. Cross Sections B-B and C-C
	Sheets and Views
	LP689-103 Cross Sections-LP689-103-3


	8. Proposed HGV Route from donor site
	Sheets and Views
	LP689-102 Proposed HGV Routing Route 2-A0




